
      

NO T ICE O F  MEET INGNO T ICE O F  MEET ING
CIT Y O F  G ARLAND, T EXASCIT Y O F  G ARLAND, T EXAS

PLAN CO MMISSIO NPLAN CO MMISSIO N
City  Hall,  Counc il ChambersCity  Hall,  Counc il Chambers

William E. Dollar  Munic ipal Build ingWilliam E. Dollar  Munic ipal Build ing
200 N. F if th Street200 N. F if th Street

G ar land, T ex asG ar land, T ex as
Marc h 25, 2024 at 7:00 p.m.Marc h 25, 2024 at 7:00 p.m.  

 
A meet ing of the Plan Commis s ion of the C ity  of  G ar land, T ex as  w ill be held at the aforementioned loc at ion, date, and t ime to dis c us s  and c ons ider  theA meeting of the Plan Commis s ion of the C ity  of  G ar land, T ex as  w ill be held at the aforementioned loc at ion, date, and t ime to dis c us s  and c ons ider  the
follow ing agenda items .follow ing agenda items .

A pre-meet ing w ill begin at 5:15 p.m. at  the s ame loc at ion as  the regular  meet ing.  T he agenda for  the pre-meet ing is  the s ame as  for  the regularA pre-meet ing w ill begin at 5:15 p.m. at  the s ame loc at ion as  the regular  meet ing.  T he agenda for  the pre-meet ing is  the s ame as  for  the regular
meet ing, and may  inc lude addit ional items  as  s et for th below.meeting, and may  inc lude addit ional items  as  s et for th below.

  INVO CAT IO N AND PLEDG E O F  ALLEG IANCE:  I t  is  the c us tom and tr adit ion of the members  of the Plan Commis s ion to hav e an inv oc at ion and rec ita lINVO CAT IO N AND PLEDG E O F  ALLEG IANCE:  I t  is  the c us tom and tr adit ion of the members  of the Plan Commis s ion to hav e an inv oc at ion and rec ita l
of  the Pledge of Allegianc e pr ior  to the beginning of the meet ing.  Members  of the audienc e are inv ited to par t ic ipate.  Howev er ,  members  of theof the Pledge of Allegianc e pr ior  to the beginning of the meet ing.  Members  of the audienc e are inv ited to par t ic ipate.  Howev er ,  members  of the
audienc e are not r equir ed to par t ic ipate.  T he dec is ion to par t ic ipate is  s tr ic t ly  a matter  of  pers onal c hoic e and has  no bear ing on matter s  to beaudienc e are not r equir ed to par t ic ipate.  T he dec is ion to par t ic ipate is  s tr ic t ly  a matter  of  pers onal c hoic e and has  no bear ing on matter s  to be
c ons idered by  the Plan Commis s ion and w ill not af fec t the dec is ions  to be made dur ing the meet ing.c ons idered by  the Plan Commis s ion and w ill not af fec t the dec is ions  to be made dur ing the meet ing.

T he meet ing w ill be broadc as t on C ity  of  G ar land G ov ernment Ac c es s  T elev is ion (CG T V) .  CG T V is  av ailable v ia G ar landT X.gov , c hannel 16T he meet ing w ill be broadc as t on C ity  of  G ar land G ov ernment Ac c es s  T elev is ion (CG T V) .  CG T V is  av ailable v ia G ar landT X.gov , c hannel 16
(Spec trum) , Channel 44 (F ront ier ) ,  and c hannel 99 (AT &T  U-v ers e) .   Meet ings  are broadc as t online v ia liv e- s tr eaming, on-demand, and air  on CG T V(Spec trum) , Channel 44 (F ront ier ) ,  and c hannel 99 (AT &T  U-v ers e) .   Meet ings  are broadc as t online v ia liv e- s tr eaming, on-demand, and air  on CG T V
with s ev eral r ebroadc as ts  dur ing the week  of the meet ing. w ith s ev eral r ebroadc as ts  dur ing the week  of the meet ing. 

Public  CommentsPublic  Comments
Your  c omments  mus t r e late to an item on th is  agenda -  non-germane c omments  are not in order .   T ime limits  w ill be impos ed by  the Chairman asYour  c omments  mus t r e late to an item on th is  agenda -  non-germane c omments  are not in order .   T ime limits  w ill be impos ed by  the Chairman as
appropr iate to the nature of the agenda item.  G enerally ,  public  s peak ers  are giv en three minutes .appropr iate to the nature of the agenda item.  G enerally ,  public  s peak ers  are giv en three minutes .  

IN-PERSO N CO MMENT S: Regis tr at ion w ill be r equir ed for  any  c it iz en w is hing to s peak . Speak ers  s hall r egis ter  us ing the elec tr onic  r egis tr at ion k ios k sIN-PERSO N CO MMENT S: Regis tr at ion w ill be r equir ed for  any  c it iz en w is hing to s peak . Speak ers  s hall r egis ter  us ing the elec tr onic  r egis tr at ion k ios k s
in the lobby  of C ity  Hall.in the lobby  of C ity  Hall.

G ar land C ity  Hall and Counc il Chambers  are wheelc hair  ac c es s ible.   Spec ial park ing is  av ailable on the eas t s ide of C ity  Hall and on Aus t in & StateG ar land C ity  Hall and Counc il Chambers  are wheelc hair  ac c es s ible.   Spec ial park ing is  av ailable on the eas t s ide of C ity  Hall and on Aus t in & State
Street wes t of  C ity  Hall.   Pers ons  w ith dis abilit ies  who plan to at tend th is  meet ing and who may  need aux iliar y  aids  or  s er v ic es  mus t c ontac t the C ityStreet wes t of  C ity  Hall.   Pers ons  w ith dis abilit ies  who plan to at tend th is  meet ing and who may  need aux iliar y  aids  or  s er v ic es  mus t c ontac t the C ity
Sec retar y 's  O ff ic e at ( 972)  205-2404 at leas t two work ing day s  pr ior  to the meet ing s o that appropr iate ar rangements  c an be made.  BRAILLE IS NO TSec retar y 's  O ff ic e at ( 972)  205-2404 at leas t two work ing day s  pr ior  to the meet ing s o that appropr iate ar rangements  c an be made.  BRAILLE IS NO T
AVAILABLE.AVAILABLE.

I f  the Plan Commis s ion adjourns  into ex ec ut iv e s es s ion dur ing th is  meet ing, the ex ec ut iv e s es s ion w ill be c onduc ted between and among the membersIf  the Plan Commis s ion adjourns  into ex ec ut iv e s es s ion dur ing th is  meet ing, the ex ec ut iv e s es s ion w ill be c onduc ted between and among the members
of the Plan Commis s ion and relev ant C ity  s taf f .   Public  ac c es s  to that meet ing is  prohibited by  State law.  of  the Plan Commis s ion and relev ant C ity  s taf f .   Public  ac c es s  to that meet ing is  prohibited by  State law.  
 

C ON SEN T AGEN D AC ON SEN T AGEN D A  
 

Al l  i tems under th is section are recommended for approval  by a single motion of the P lan C ommission,A l l  i tems under th is section are recommended for approval  by a single motion of the P lan C ommission,
w i thout d iscussion.  The P lan C ommission has had the opportuni ty to review  each of these i tems during aw i thout d iscussion.  The P lan C ommission has had the opportuni ty to review  each of these i tems during a
pre-meeting.  The C hai rman w i l l  announce the agenda and provide an opportuni ty for members of thepre-meeting.  The C hai rman w i l l  announce the agenda and provide an opportuni ty for members of the
audience and the P lan C ommission to request that an i tem be removed and considered separate ly.audience and the P lan C ommission to request that an i tem be removed and considered separate ly.  
 
      

1.1. MINUTESMINUTES   

 

a.a. Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the March 11, 2024 meeting. 
 

2.2. PLATSPLATS   

 

a.a. P 24-08 Kingsley Road Properties Industrial District - Replat
 



      

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATIONITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 

Speaker Regulations:Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must fi l l out a speaker card and giveAnyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must fi l l out a speaker card and give
it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards are located at the entrance to theit to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards are located at the entrance to the
Council Chambers).  The Chairman will recognize speakers; he may impose a time limit andCouncil Chambers).  The Chairman will recognize speakers; he may impose a time limit and
may provide for rebuttal.  All comments and testimony are to be presented from the podium.may provide for rebuttal.  All comments and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

  

 

3.3. ZONINGZONING   

 

a.a. Consideration of the application of David GibbonsDavid Gibbons , requesting approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned
Development (PD) District 17-25 for Multi-Family-1 (MF-1) Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for an Elder Care-
Assisted Living Use. This property is located at 1922 Castle Drive. (District 2) (File Z 23-28)

 

b.b. Consideration of the application of Golden Bee Trove LLCGolden Bee Trove LLC, requesting approval of 1) a Specific Use
Provision for a Used Goods, Retail Sales (Indoors) Use and 2) a Plan on a property zoned  Planned
Development (PD) District 18-40.This property is located at 5501 Broadway Boulevard, Suite 105. (District
4) (File Z 24-04)

 

c.c. Consideration of the application of Kimley HornKimley Horn, requesting approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from
Planned Development (PD) District 99-49 for Neighborhood Office Uses to Community Retail (CR) District;
2) a Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use and 3) a Variance to Section 4.39 of the
GDC regarding perimeter screening adjacent to residential development. This property is located at 2301
Arapaho Road (District 7) (File Z 24-11)

 

4.4. MISCELLANEOUSMISCELLANEOUS   

 

a.a. Consideration of the application of Silvano RamosSilvano Ramos, requesting  approval of a variance to Section 4.29 (C)
(10) of the Garland Development Code requiring compliance of screening and landscaping requirements for
an upgraded parking lot. This property is located at 409 and 411 East Walnut Street. (District 2) (File SL 24-
01)

 

b.b. Consideration to amend various Sections of Chapter 1, "General Provisions," Chapter 2, "Zoning
Regulations," Chapter 3, "Subdivision Regulations," Chapter 4, "Site Development," Chapter 5, "Relief
Procedures & Enforcement," and Chapter 7, "Downtown (DT) District" of the Garland Development Code of
the City of Garland, Texas.

 

5.5. ADJOURNADJOURN   

 

NOTICE: The Plan Commission may recess from the open session and convene in a closed session if the discussion of any of the listed agenda items concerns matters regarding
priviledged and unpriviiledged client information deemed confidential by Rule 1.05 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct.  Sec. 551.071, Tex. Gov't Code.

NOTE: A quorum of the City Council may be in attendance and may or may not participate in the discussions of the Committee or board.



GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 1. a. 1. a.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 03/25/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: Plan Commission Minutes for March 11, 2024
Summary:Summary:
Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the March 11, 2024 meeting. 

AttachmentsAttachments
March 11, 2024 Plan Commission Minutes



MINUTESMINUTES
 

 
The Plan Commission of the City of Garland convened in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, March 11, 2024, in
the Council Chambers at the William E. Dollar Municipal Building, 200 N. Fifth Street, Garland, Texas, with the
following members present:

Present: Scott Roberts, Chairman  
Julius Jenkins, 1st Vice Chair  
Wayne Dalton, 2nd Vice Chair  
Stephanie Paris, Commissioner  
Georgie Cornelius, Commissioner  
Rich Aubin, Commissioner  
Patrick Abell, Commissioner  
Michael Rose, Commissioner  

Staff Present: Will Guerin, Planning Director
Angela Self, Planning Administrator
Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development Planner
Shawn Roten, Senior Assistant City Attorney
Elisa Morales, Secretary

 
C O NSENT  AG EN DAC O NSEN T  AG END A  

 
All items  under  th is  s ec t ion ar e  r ec ommended for  appr ov a l by  a  s ing le  mot ion o f  the Plan C ommis s ion,  w ithout  d is c us s ion.   T he Plan C ommis s ion hasAll items  under  th is  s ec t ion ar e  r ec ommended for  appr ov a l by  a  s ing le  mot ion o f  the Plan C ommis s ion,  w ithout  d is c us s ion.   T he Plan C ommis s ion has
had the oppor tun ity  to  r ev iew  eac h o f  thes e items  dur ing a  pr e- meet ing.   T he C hair man w ill announc e the agenda and pr ov ide an oppor tun ity  forhad the oppor tun ity  to  r ev iew  eac h o f  thes e items  dur ing a  pr e- meet ing.   T he Chair man w ill announc e the agenda and pr ov ide an oppor tun ity  for
member s  o f  the aud ienc e and the Plan Commis s ion to  r eques t  that  an item be r emov ed and c ons ider ed s epar ate ly .member s  o f  the aud ienc e and the Plan Commis s ion to  r eques t  that  an item be r emov ed and c ons ider ed s epar ate ly .

Mot ionMot ion  was made by Commissioner Paris to appr ov eappr ov e  the Consent Agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Dalton. Mot ion c ar r iedMot ion c ar r ied : 88  Ayes, 00  Nays. 
 
        

1.1. MINUTESMINUTES  
 

a.a. Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the February 26, 2024 meeting. APPROVEDAPPROVED   

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATIONITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 

Speaker Regulations:Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must f i l l  out a speakerAnyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must f i l l  out a speaker
card and give it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards arecard and give it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking (cards are
located at the entrance to the Council Chambers).  The Chairman will recognizelocated at the entrance to the Council Chambers).  The Chairman will recognize
speakers; he may impose a t ime limit and may provide for rebuttal.  All commentsspeakers; he may impose a t ime limit and may provide for rebuttal.  All comments
and testimony are to be presented from the podium.and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

 

 

2.2. ZONINGZONING  
 

a.a. Consideration of the application of Texas Taco Cabana, LPTexas Taco Cabana, LP, requesting approval of 1) a
Specific Use Provision Renewal for a Drive-Through, Restaurant Use and 2) a Plan on a
property zoned Community Retail (CR) District with a Specific Use Provision (S 02-36). This
property is located at 5959 Broadway Boulevard. (District 4) (File Z 24-09)

MotionMotion was made by Commissioner Cornelius to close the public hearing and approveapprove the
application as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Abell. Motion carr iedMotion carr ied: 88 Ayes, 00 Nays. 

APPROVEDAPPROVED   

 



        

3.3. MISCELLANEOUSMISCELLANEOUS  
 

a.a. Consideration of the application of SignSmiths of TXSignSmiths of TX, requesting  approval of 1) a Major
Waiver to Chapter 7, Table 7-7 of the Garland Development Code and 2) a Downtown
Development Plan to allow an awning sign on a property zoned Downtown (DT) District, Uptown
(U) sub-district. This property is located at 823 Main Street. (District 2) (File DD 24-01)

MotionMotion was made by Commissioner Jenkins to approveapprove the application as presented.
Seconded by Commissioner Aubin. Motion carr iedMotion carr ied: 88 Ayes, 00 Nays.

APPROVEDAPPROVED   

 

4.4. ADJOURNADJOURN

There being no further business to come before the Plan Commission, the meeting adjourned at
7:05. 

 

 
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS  

 
/s/ Scott Roberts, Chairman  /s/ Elisa Morales, Secretary



GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 2. a. 2. a.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 03/25/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: P 24-08 Kingsley Road Properties Industrial District - Replat
Summary:Summary:
P 24-08 Kingsley Road Properties Industrial District - Replat

AttachmentsAttachments
P 24-08 Kingsley Road Properties Industrial District Replat Report & Attachments



Planning Report 
File No: P 24-08 /District 5 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: March 25, 2024 
 
REPLAT 
Kingsley Road Properties Industrial District 
 
LOCATION 
2622 Industrial Lane 
 
ZONING 
Industrial (IN) District 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
One 

 
ACREAGE 
0.722 acres 
 
BACKGROUND 
The purpose of this replat is to develop a warehouse building.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Replat. All technical requirements have been addressed and the plat is in 
order as submitted.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. 24 x 36 Plat  
 
PREPARED BY: REVIEWED BY: 
Nabiha Ahmed                                                   Will Guerin, AICP 
Lead Development Planner                                  Director of Planning                              
Planning and Development                                    
972-205-2453  
nahmed@garlandtx.gov 
  
 
 
 



N
AT

IO
N

AL
 C

IRIN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L 
LN I NI N

2702

2601

3134

3145

2623

3130

2636

2605

2702

2613

2612

2637

2713

2705

2625

2622

2607
3133

2609

3139

2621

2614

2602

2614

2631

2629 2625

¯
0 80 160 Feet

1 inch = 127 feet PLAT MAP P 24-08 INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST





GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 3. a. 3. a.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 03/25/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: Z 23-28 David Gibbons (District 2)
Summary:Summary:
Consideration of the application of David GibbonsDavid Gibbons , requesting approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned
Development (PD) District 17-25 for Multi-Family-1 (MF-1) Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for an Elder Care- Assisted
Living Use. This property is located at 1922 Castle Drive. (District 2) (File Z 23-28)

AttachmentsAttachments
Z 23-28 David Gibbons Report & Attachments (District 2)
Z 23-28 David Gibbons Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 23-28/District 2 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: March 25, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 17-25 for Multi-Family-
1 (MF-1) Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for an Elder Care- Assisted Living Use 
 
 
LOCATION 
1922 Castle Drive 
 
APPLICANT 
David Gibbons 
 
OWNER 
Garland Housing Finance Corporation 
 
BACKGROUND 
The site was developed with a 22,000 square-foot Nursing Home that was constructed in 
1970. In the early 2000’s, the facility ceased to operate, and the property was sold. 
 
In 2017, the City Council approved to use the vacant building as an Elder Care – Assisted 
Living. However, the building was demolished in 2021.  
 
The applicant is now proposing a new layout for an Elder Care- Assisted Living Use. Per the 
applicant’s narrative, “The mission is to provide affordable housing for seniors. These 
planned twenty (20) residences will provide new, safe, sanitary, and sustainable housing to 
Garland seniors.” 
 
SITE DATA 
The subject property contains approximately 2.52acres and has approximately 236.59 linear 
feet of frontage along Castle Drive. The property has two access points from Castle Drive.  

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is currently zoned Planned Development (PD) District 17-25 for an 
Assisted Living Use.  
 
The GDC defines Elder Care – Assisted Living as “A type of Personal Care Facility in which 
five or more elderly (over 55 years of age) persons, regardless of legal relationship, live and 
who need limited assistance with daily living activities.” 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
     Detail Plan  
1. The site plan (Exhibit C) reflects a total of four (4) buildings and each building consists 

of five (5) dwelling units. A total of twenty (20) dwelling units are proposed surrounding 
an internal courtyard.  
 



Page 2 of 4 
 

Additionally, this development will comply with the minimum GDC dwelling unit size.  
 
2.   Screening and Landscaping  
 

The GDC requires a minimum of forty (40%) percent of the site to be landscaped and 
the landscape plan meets the required landscaping.  
 
Additionally, an Elder Care Assisted Living requires perimeter fencing. The applicant is 
proposing an eight (8)-foot tall ornamental fence with masonry columns along the 
northern, eastern and southern property lines. The existing wood fence along the 
western perimeter will remain as it is.  It should be noted that in Planned Development 
(PD) District 17-25, the City Council approved the wood fence to remain along the 
western perimeter and an ornamental fence with masonry columns was proposed along 
the remaining perimeter of the property.  
 
Along with the ornamental metal fence, a continuous row of evergreen high-level 
screening shrubs are required along all portions of the fence that are not opaque 
masonry. The applicant is requesting partial relief from this requirement due to large 
drainage easements. The landscape plan reflects high-level screening and large canopy 
trees along the northern perimeter and partial row of shrubs along the eastern western 
perimeter.  
 

 
3. Amenities 

 
The GDC requires indoor common or recreational areas must be provided at a ratio of at 
least one hundred square feet of gross floor area per dwelling unit. This development 
would require 2,000 square-foot of indoor recreational space. The applicant is not 
proposing indoor recreational space with amenities. However, per the applicant’s 
narrative, “Each dwelling unit has been designed to have a direct access to a common 
porch (733 sq. ft) which will overlook and provide access to a planted interior garden 
environment.  This common area is meant to create opportunity for connections within 
the individual structure allowing for residence an opportunity to sit and gather with 
natural light and air.  It is meant to encourage connection to the internal garden area.  
The spaces then interlock to encourage connections to other structures thus developing 
a sense of the community.  A total of 2,932 sq. ft. of total covered common area is 
provided by these porches.” 

 
4. Parking 

The site plan (Exhibit C) complies with the parking requirement per the GDC. 
 

 
5. Building Design 

 
The GDC requires a minimum of six (6) architectural elements for multi-family and non-
residential developments. This proposed development is a low-density residential style 
layout. The building elevations (Exhibit E) reflect three (3) architectural elements per 
units that is required per Section 4.84 of the GDC for single-family, duplex and 
townhouse developments.  

 
6. Planned Development Flexibilities 



Page 3 of 4 
 

The applicant requests a Planned Development (PD) District to accommodate a senior 
assisted living development. The applicant is requesting the following 
flexibilities/deviations: 
 

• Screening: The applicant is not proposing a dense row of high-level screening 
shrubs along the ornamental fence with masonry columns, due to the site 
configuration and large drainage easements.  
 

• Amenities: This development would require 2,000 square feet of indoor 
recreational space. This proposed development is a low-density, residential style 
assisted living. Instead, each dwelling unit will have a porch which will overlook 
and provide access to a planted interior garden environment.   

 
• Building Design: This proposal fits the residential building design. Therefore, the 

applicant is proposing the three (3) architectural elements in lieu of the six (6) 
architectural elements are required for conventional multi-family and non-
residential developments. 
 

 
It should be noted the applicant is redeveloping a site that was previously a Nursing 
Home. 

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Compact 
Neighborhoods.  
 
Compact neighborhoods provide areas for moderate increases in residential density, 
including single-family attached and single-family detached housing. It expands housing 
options through infill and redevelopment, while continuing walkable development patterns. 
 
The Compact neighborhood development type is primarily characterized as moderate 
residential (between six and twelve dwelling units per acre). 
 
The proposed net density is 8.4 dwelling units per acre; therefore, the development is 
supportive of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 
Per the Economic Development Strategic Plan, additional density increases sales tax and 
supports existing businesses. The subject property will provide additional housing to the 
area for seniors.  
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the north, across Castle Drive, are zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District; 
these properties are developed with single-family homes. The properties directly to the east 
and south are zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District; these properties are developed with 
single-family homes. The property to the west is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 
10-33; it is developed with an apartment complex.  
 
The property was previously developed with a 22,000 square-foot nursing home. This low-
density proposal will blend with the surrounding residential developments.  
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 17-25 for Multi-Family-
1 (MF-1) Uses and 2) a Detail Plan for an Elder Care- Assisted Living Use 
 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. PD Conditions 
iii. Exhibits 
iv. Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: April 16, 2024 
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Nabiha Ahmed Will Guerin, AICP 
Lead Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2453  
nahmed@garlandtx.gov  

mailto:nahmed@garlandtx.gov


810

814

808

818 820

822
806 804

802

CASTLE DR

BL
UE

 B
ON

NE
T 

CI
R

TH
O

R
N

H
ILL LN

CL
AR

IS
SA

PL

SAGE BRUSH ST

MORRISON DR
SHOREHAVEN D

R

DESERT R
OSE S

T

TO
YAH C

REEK LN

DESERT ROSE ST

AZALE
A S

T

WHITNEY DR

WOODNOTE LN

P DP D
7 3 - 97 3 - 9

P D  8 1 - 5 5P D  8 1 - 5 5

P D  1 7 - 2 5P D  1 7 - 2 5

M F - 1M F - 1

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  1 0 - 3 3P D  1 0 - 3 3

910

1922

1925

1922

1541

914

834812

1933

1529

1917

1929

1521

1933

2006

1516

836

1525

1537

1601

601

1913

830

2004

1921

1905

1929

802

906

1918

804

2002

1926

802

1909

1934

1537

1925

1938

1930

902

1605

1545

820

832

810

1533

1541

1983 1987

1755

1766

1804

851

1834

1854

1874

840

841

816

816

800

801

2009

ZONING MAP Z 23-28
¯

0 80 160 Feet
1 inch = 127 feet

1922 Castle Drive

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 23-28 
 

1922 Castle Drive 
 
I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned 

Development is to approve an Elder Care- Assisted Living 
development. 

 
 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not 

affect any regulation found in the Garland Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption 
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided 
herein. 

 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Multi-

Family-1 (MF-1) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of 
the Garland Development Code are included by reference 
and shall apply, except as otherwise specified by this 
ordinance. 

 
IV. Development Plans: 
 

Detail Plan: Development shall be in general conformance 
with the Detail Plan labeled Exhibit C through Exhibit 
E. In the event there is conflict between the approved 
Detail Plan and the Specific Regulations below, the 
Specific Regulations shall apply.  

 
V. Specific Conditions: 
  

A. Permitted Uses: Elder Care – Assisted Living Use, as 
defined by the Garland Development Code, only shall 
be permitted. 
 

B. Site Plan: The site layout, building placement, 
parking, and other development proposed shall be in 
general conformance with the approved Site Plan 
labeled Exhibit C. 

 
C. Dwelling Units: A total of twenty (20) dwelling units 

shall be permitted.  
 

D. Landscape Plan: Screening and landscaping shall be in 
general conformance with the landscape plan labeled 
Exhibit D. The existing wood fence along the northwest 
property line shall remain. At all other locations the 
perimeter fencing shall be developed with ornamental 



PD Conditions 
File Z 23-28 
Page - 2 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

metal fence with masonry columns. 
 

1. Landscaping must be regularly maintained in a 
healthy, growing condition and in compliance with 
this PD Ordinance, the Garland Development Code, 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, 
and the landscaping plan attached hereto at all 
times. The property owner is responsible for 
regular weeding, mowing of grass, irrigation, 
fertilizing, pruning, or other maintenance of all 
plantings as needed. All exposed ground surfaces  
on or within the premises shall be properly 
improved, covered with screening or other 
approved solid material, or protected with a 
vegetative growth that prevents soil erosion and 
ameliorates objectionable dust conditions. 
 

2. Any plant or vegetation that dies must be 
replaced with another approved plant variety that 
complies with the approved landscape plan within 
sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City. In the event the 
property owner fails to remedy a violation of any 
landscaping maintenance regulation within sixty  
(60) days after receipt of written notification 
from the City, the City may, in addition to any 
other remedy available by law, withhold future 
city permits, licenses and/or certificates 
requested by the property owner for the premises 
to which such violation applies.  
 

3. Screening and paving must be regularly maintained 
in compliance with this PD Ordinance, the Garland  
Development Code, and the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Garland at all times. The property 
owner is responsible for regular maintenance of 
all screening and paving as needed.  In the event 
the property owner fails to remedy a violation 
of any screening or paving maintenance regulation 
within sixty (60) days after receipt of written 
notification from the City, the City may, in 
addition to any other remedy available by law, 
withhold future city permits, licenses and/or 
certificates requested by the property owner for 
the premises to which such violation applies. 
 



PD Conditions 
File Z 23-28 
Page - 3 - 3 
   

EXHIBIT B 

 
E. Elevations: Building Elevations shall be in general 

conformance with the elevations labeled Exhibit E. 
 

 



Δ



BUILDING SITE DATA:

NUMBER OF BUILDINGS: 4
NUMBER OF DWELLING
UNITS PER BUILDING:

5

DENSITY: 7.9 du/ac

TOTAL BULIDING 3,868 SQ. FT.

UNIT 1 - 1 BEDROOM 674 SQ. FT.
UNIT 2 - 1 BEDROOM 674 SQ. FT.
UNIT 3 - 2 BEDROOM 923 SQ. FT.
UNIT 4 - 2 BEDROOM 923 SQ. FT.
UNIT 5 - 1 BEDROOM 674 SQ. FT.

MINIMUM DWELLING
UNIT SIZE:

REQUIRED: 200 SQ. FT.  |  PROVIDED: 674 SQ. FT.

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



GAS
MRKR

10' LANDSCAPE  BUFFER

STEEL EDGING

SPRUCE AND GANDER
GRANDIFIORIERE PLANTER
AND SEATING

COLORED CONCRETE W/
SALT FINISH

SPRUCE AND GANDER
GRANDIFIORIERE PLANTER
AND SEATING

4" CONCRETE EDGE

8' TALL
BRICK AND METAL FENCE

BUILDING D
PROPOSED SENIOR LIVING
3,868 SF (INTERIOR GROSS)

BUILDING A
PROPOSED SENIOR LIVING
3,868 SF (INTERIOR GROSS)

BUILDING C
PROPOSED SENIOR LIVING
3,868 SF (INTERIOR GROSS)

BUILDING B
PROPOSED SENIOR LIVING
3,868 SF (INTERIOR GROSS)

8' TALL
BRICK AND METAL FENCE

8' TALL BRICK AND METAL FENCE

GABION WALL, REFER TO CIVIL DRAWINGS

EXISTING WOOD FENCE
TO REMAIN

CHECKED:

DATE:

DRAWN:

SCALE:

JOB NO.:

REVISIONS:

21
2 

W
es

t N
in

th
 S

tre
et

 T
yl

er
, T

ex
as

 7
57

01
90

3-
59

7-
66

06
   

   
   

   
   

  T
B

PE
 N

o.
 1

45
71

M
H

S
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
 &

 D
ES

IG
N

, L
LC

DBS

AS SHOWN

23-008

3/12/2024

C
A

ST
LE

 D
R

IV
E-

G
A

R
LA

N
D

 H
U

D
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

G
AR

LA
N

D
, T

EX
AS

MEP

L1Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

R

l:\
ci

ty
 o

f g
ar

la
nd

\2
3-

00
8 

ga
rla

nd
 h

ud
 - 

ca
st

le
 d

riv
e 

la
 p

la
n\

C
AD

\0
3 

- p
ro

du
ct

io
n\

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Pl

an
.d

w
g

FEET0 4020

GRAPHIC SCALE

N

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

10.19.23 Revised Site Plan

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS
Parking Required: 27
Parking Provided: 37
Landscaping Required: 43,909 SF
Landscape Provided: 35,261 SF
Shade Trees Required: 10
Shade Trees Provided: 11
Ornamental Trees Required: 14
Ornamental Trees Provided: 23
Shrubs Required: 115
Shrubs Provided: 453

SYMBOL BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT SIZE QTY

TREES

Pistacia chinensis / Chinese Pistache 65 gal. 12` MIN HT/6` MIN W 4

Quercus muehlenbergii / Chinkapin Oak 65 gal. 12` MIN HT/6` MIN W 3

Quercus shumardii / Shumard Red Oak 65 gal. 12` MIN HT/6` MIN W 3

Ulmus crassifolia / Cedar Elm 65 gal. 12` MIN HT/6` MIN W 1

ORNAMENTAL TREES

Acer palmatum dissectum 'Waterfall' / Waterfall Japanese Maple 30 gal. 2

Ilex vomitoria 'Pride of Houston' / Pride of Houston Yaupon Holly 30 gal. 2

Lagerstroemia indica x fauriei `Arapaho` / Arapaho Crape Myrtle 30 gal. 18

Magnolia grandiflora 'Little Gem' / Little Gem Dwarf Southern Magnolia 30 gal. 4

SYMBOL BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT QTY

SHRUBS

Abelia x grandiflora `Kaleidoscope` / Kaleidoscope Glossy Abelia 3 gal. 79

Hesperaloe x 'Perfu' / Pink Parade Red Yucca 3 gal. 132

Ilex cornuta 'Burfordii Nana' / Dwarf Burford Holly 7 gal. 134

Ilex vomitoria `Nana` / Dwarf Yaupon Holly 3 gal. 107

Leucophyllum frutescens 'Compacta' / Compact Texas Ranger 7 gal. 16

Loropetalum chinense rubrum `Shang-hi` TM / Purple Diamond Fringe Flower 15 gal. 55

Nandina domestica 'Murasaki' / Flirt™ Heavenly Bamboo 3 gal. 44

Teucrium fruticans 'Silver Bush' / Silver Bush Germander 3 gal. 20

SYMBOL BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT SPACING QTY

SHRUB AREAS

Liriope gigantea / Giant Liriope 1 gal. 24" o.c. 314

PERENNIAL

Dianthus gratianopolitanus / Cheddar Pink 1 gal. 8" o.c. 183

GROUND COVERS

Euonymus fortunei / Wintercreeper 4"pot 12" o.c. 2,208

Liriope densiflora / Lilyturf 4"pot 12" o.c. 381

TURFGRASS

Cynodon dactylon / Bermudagrass Sod 16,473 sf

PLANT SCHEDULE

Synthetic Turf- ForeverLawn Fresh or Approved Equal 4,914 SF
Note: Public Right of Way, easements and common areas
must be stabilized with perennial vegetation cover, fully
established with 100% coverage, or other approved
stabilization method.
No landscaping such as trees, hedges, above and
underground structures shall be located within existing or
proposed utility easements and right of way without
approved City’s Real Property Improvement Authorization
form or City’s License Agreement.

1.19.24 Revised Site Plan

Steel Edging 810 LF

Concrete Edging 200 LF

Bed Preparation Material (See Technical Specification Section 329113) ± 27,576 SF

D

ER

AT T

E
R

S

T
GE
IS

R

AS

ET
TC

C
IH

2

F

12

E O

1
X

T E

.

S
BDIVA

ALD DN
HS

PP
I

PEAC A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" V.C.T. S.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(720612-7)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" C.I. W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(720612-6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HC

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 10" V.C.T. S.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(720612-6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY DAVID B. SHIPP,  PLA #2121 ON MARCH 12, 2024. 

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT D



CHECKED:

DATE:

DRAWN:

SCALE:

JOB NO.:

REVISIONS:

21
2 

W
es

t N
in

th
 S

tre
et

 T
yl

er
, T

ex
as

 7
57

01
90

3-
59

7-
66

06
   

   
   

   
   

  T
B

PE
 N

o.
 1

45
71

M
H

S
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
 &

 D
ES

IG
N

, L
LC

DBS

AS SHOWN

23-008

3/12/2024

C
A

ST
LE

 D
R

IV
E-

G
A

R
LA

N
D

 H
U

D
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

G
AR

LA
N

D
, T

EX
AS

MEP

L2

l:\
ci

ty
 o

f g
ar

la
nd

\2
3-

00
8 

ga
rla

nd
 h

ud
 - 

ca
st

le
 d

riv
e 

la
 p

la
n\

C
AD

\0
3 

- p
ro

du
ct

io
n\

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Pl

an
.d

w
g

SET PLUMB IN CENTER OF PIT.
NO SOIL SHALL BE PLACED ON
TOP OF BALL; MULCH ONLY.

SCARIFY SIDES OF HOLE TO
BREAK GLAZE. HOLE TO BE
CIRCULAR W/ VERTICAL SIDES.

FINISH GRADE

COMPACTED PLANTING MIX TO LEVEL
TREE & ESTABLISH PROPER PLANTING

ELEVATION.

WATERING BASIN: MAX. WIDTH 12" BEYOND
EDGE OF HOLE. MAX. HEIGHT 8". TO BE

CONSTRUCTED W/ PLANTING MIX.
WATER TWICE WITHIN FIRST 24 HRS.

2" OF MULCH EXTENDING OVER BERM.

4" SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH.
DO NOT PLACE MULCH IN CONTACT
WITH TREE TRUNK

PRUNING: DO NOT HEAVILY PRUNE
TREES AT PLANTING. PRUNE ONLY
CROSSOVER LIMBS, CO-DOMINANT
LEADERS & BROKEN BRANCHES.
RETAIN NATURAL FORM OF TREE.

2 TIMES THE WIDTH
OF BALL OR CONTAINER

FERTILIZER TABLET AS PER SPECS

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

BACKFILL W/ TOPSOIL MIX (AS PER SPECS)
& PEATMOSS AT A 3:1 RATIO BY VOLUME

IN 9" LAYERS. WATER EACH LAYER
UNTIL SETTLED. DO NOT TAMP.

6" MIN

UNDERGROUND ROOT BALL
TREE STAKE

ARBOR STAKES
(214) 810-6678

4" SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH

SHRUBS & GROUNDCOVERS

PLANTING SOIL MIX. 1/3 BY VOLUME COMPOST,
1/3 TOPSOIL, 1/3 NATIVE SUBSOIL.
SEE SPECIFICATIONS

SUB-SOIL

4"
8"

EQUAL
O.C. EQUAL

O.C

60°

PLANT
SPACING PER
PLAN O.C.

SHRUBS & GROUNDCOVER PLANTING DETAIL

N.T.S.

UNDISTURBED NATIVE SOIL

TREE: SEE PLANTING
SCHEDULE FOR SPECIES,

 SIZE AND SPACING.

DO NOT COVER PLANT STEMS
OR BRANCHES WITH MULCH

LA
N

D
SC

AP
ED

ET
AI

L

10.19.23 Revised Site Plan

SYNTHETIC TURF CONCRETE BORDER
N.T.S.

12
"

#4 CONT. REBAR
3" CLR TOP & BOTTOM

1" CHAMFER, TYP

#3 REBAR @ 12" O.C.

COMPACT SUBGRADE TO
95% OF ASTM D 698

±3% OPTIMUM MOISTURE

8"

6"

2x4 NAILER BOARD

SAFETY FOAM PRO

SYNTHETIC TURF FOREVER LAWN
"EXPLORE" OR APPROVED EQUAL
(SEE FOREVER LAWN DETAIL FOR
INSTALLATION PRACTICES)

4" CONCRETE PAD

2"

FINISHED GRADE
OF MULCH FOR

LANDSCAPE BED

CONCRETE BORDER
(4,000 PSI)

N.T.S.

#3 REBAR 12" O.C.

1.19.24 Revised Site Plan

D

ER

AT T

E
R

S

T
GE
IS

R

AS

ET
TC

C
IH

2

F

12

E O

1
X

T E

.

S
BDIVA

ALD DN
HS

PP
I

PEAC A

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY DAVID B. SHIPP,  PLA #2121 ON MARCH 12, 2024. 

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT D



D
W

D
WD

W

DW

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

DWD
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

DWD
W

D
W

D
WD

W

DW

D
W

PROP. 15'
CITY UTILITY

 ESMT

PROP. 15'
CITY UTILITY

ESMT

PROP.
CITY UTILITY &

DRAINAGE ESMT
(WIDTH VARIES)

PROP. 15'
CITY UTILITY

ESMT

PROPOSED
DRAINAGE ESMT

PROP. 15'
CITY UTILITY

ESMT

PROP.
CITY UTILITY &

DRAINAGE ESMT
(WIDTH VARIES)

EX. 8" PVC W

(110025-0)

EX. 12" C.I. W

(720612-6)

EX
. 1

0"
 V

.C
.T

. S
.S

.
(7

20
61

2-
6)

EX. 12" V.C.T. S.S.

(720612-7)

TOP OF BANK
EXISITNG

20' R.O.W.
DEDICATION

PP
PP

PP

PP

PP

PP

10 L.S. BUFFER

EX FH

S

EX. 30' DRAIN. ESMT.
VOL. 73147, PG 1060

M.R.D.C.T.

EX. 15' UTILITY ESMT.
INST. NO. 201100204171

O.P.R.D.C.T.

EX. 20' UTILITY ESMT.
INST. NO. 201100204171

O.P.R.D.C.T.

PROP. 15'
CITY UTILITY

ESMT

HCHC

HC

HC

HC

HC

GAS
MRKR

N
 4

6°
08

'4
2"

 E
 3

92
.9

4'

S45°44'10"E 236.59'

L=63.37' R=623.00'
Δ=5°49'41"

CH=S49°08'06"E 63.34'

N43°57'18" W 147.32'

S7
3°

13
'42

"W
 7

4.
16

'

N54°57'18"W  94.68'

N 50°35'18" W
25.72'

S 
46

°0
8'

42
" W

 3
19

.0
1'

CITY OF GARLAND
VOL. 73067, PG. 2910 D.R.D.C.T.

JOSE GARCIA &
ARMANDO GARCIA

INST. NO. 201400213390
O.P.R.D.C.TLOT 3, BLOCK 1

HOMETOWNE AT GARLAND
INST. NO. 201100204171

D.R.D.C.T.

CASTLE DRIVE
80' R.O.W.

EX. ASPHALT ROAD

TO
YA

H
 C

R
EE

K 
LA

N
E

50
' R

.O
.W

.

BRADFIELD CREEK

ASPHALT SHINGLES OVER 30# 
BUILDING PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM, 
TYP.

ASPHALT SHINGLES OVER 30# 
BUILDING PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM, 
TYP.

1' - 10 7/8" 11' - 0 1/8" 10' - 4 3/4"

23' - 3 3/4"

10' - 4 3/4" 11' - 0 1/8" 2' - 0"

23' - 4 7/8"

1' - 10 7/8" 11' - 0 1/8" 10' - 4 3/4"

23' - 3 3/4"

10' - 4 3/4" 11' - 0 1/8" 2' - 0"

23' - 4 7/8"

14' - 3 1/2"

16' - 7 1/4"

17' - 7"

7' - 10 1/4"

17' - 7 1/4"

16' - 7 1/4"

14' - 5 1/2" 14' - 3 1/2"

16' - 7 1/4"

17' - 7"

17' - 7 1/4"

16' - 7 1/4"

ASPHALT SHINGLES OVER 30# 
BUILDING PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM, TYP. ASPHALT SHINGLES OVER 30# 
BUILDING PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM, TYP.

2' - 5 1/8" 13' - 1 1/4" 8' - 9 1/4" 14' - 11 1/2" 17' - 1 1/4"

56' - 4 1/4"

17' - 1 3/8" 14' - 11 1/2" 14' - 8" 14' - 11 1/2" 8' - 9 1/4" 12' - 10 1/2" 2' - 7 3/4"

85' - 11 3/4"

16' - 4 3/4"

17' - 7"

7' - 11"

13' - 8"

14' - 3 1/2" 12' - 11 3/4" 16' - 7 1/4" 16' - 7 1/4"
14' - 3 1/2" 14' - 5 1/2"

13' - 7 1/4"

17' - 7 1/4" 16' - 4 3/4"

ASPHALT SHINGLES OVER 30# 
BUILDING PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM ASPHALT SHINGLES OVER 30# 
BUILDING PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM

14' - 3 1/2"

16' - 7 1/4"

17' - 7"
17' - 7 1/4"

16' - 7 1/4"

14' - 5 1/2" 14' - 3 1/2"

16' - 7 1/4"

17' - 7"

14' - 3 1/2"

16' - 7 1/4"

10' - 4 3/4" 11' - 0 1/8" 2' - 0"

23' - 4 7/8"

1' - 10 7/8" 11' - 0 1/8" 10' - 4 3/4"

23' - 3 3/4"

10' - 4 3/4" 11' - 0 1/8" 2' - 0"

23' - 4 7/8"

1' - 10 7/8" 11' - 0 1/8" 10' - 4 3/4"

23' - 3 3/4"

ASPHALT SHINGLES OVER 30# 
BUILDING PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM, TYP ASPHALT SHINGLES OVER 30# 
BUILDING PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM, TYP

2' - 5 1/8" 13' - 1 1/4" 8' - 9 1/4" 14' - 11 1/2" 6' - 0" 11' - 1 1/4"

56' - 4 1/4"

11' - 1 1/4" 6' - 0" 14' - 11 1/2" 14' - 8" 14' - 11 1/2" 8' - 9 1/4" 12' - 10 3/8" 2' - 7 7/8"

85' - 11 3/4"

12' - 11 3/4"

16' - 7 1/4" 14' - 3 1/2"
14' - 5 1/2" 17' - 7 1/4"

13' - 7 1/4"
13' - 8"

14' - 3 1/2"
16' - 7 1/4"

17' - 7"

RE
G
IS
TR
A
TI
O
N

CO
N
SU
LT
A
N
TS

A
RC
H
IT
EC
T

SH
EE
T 
IN
FO
RM
A
TI
O
N

P
RO
JE
CT
 IN
FO
RM
A
TI
O
N

M
EP
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
 C
O
N
SU
LT
A
N
T

R
ED
FO
R
D
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
IN
G

G
A
R
Y
 A
. R
A
D
FO
R
D
, P
.E
.

21
4-
21
5-
44
37

C
IV
IL
 &
 S
TR
U
C
TU
R
A
L 
EN
G
IN
N
ER

M
O
N
K
 C
O
N
SU
LT
IN
G
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
S,
 IN
C

G
ER
A
LD
 E
. M
O
N
K
, P
E

97
2-
27
2-
17
63

C
a
se
 N
u
m
b
er
: 2
30
22
8-
1

A-200
COURTYARD ELEVATIONS

TH
E 
H
O
M
ES
 O
N
 C
A
ST
LE

G
H
FC

05.30.23

19
22
 C
A
ST
LE
 D
R
IV
E

G
A
R
LA
N
D
, T
EX
A
S

CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS

11.15.23

 1/8" = 1'-0"01 COURTYARD EAST ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"02 COURTYARD SOUTH ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"03 COURTYARD WEST ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"04 COUTYARD NORTH ELEVATION

D. A.

B.C.

ELEVATION BUILDING KEY

BULIDING A BULIDING B

BULIDING CBULIDING B

BULIDING C BULIDING D

BULIDING D BULIDING A

No. Date

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



D
W

D
WD

W

DW

D
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

DWD
W

D
W

D
W

D
W

DWD
W

D
W

D
WD

W

DW

D
W

PROP. 15'
CITY UTILITY

 ESMT

PROP. 15'
CITY UTILITY

ESMT

PROP.
CITY UTILITY &

DRAINAGE ESMT
(WIDTH VARIES)

PROP. 15'
CITY UTILITY

ESMT

PROPOSED
DRAINAGE ESMT

PROP. 15'
CITY UTILITY

ESMT

PROP.
CITY UTILITY &

DRAINAGE ESMT
(WIDTH VARIES)

EX. 8" PVC W

(110025-0)

EX. 12" C.I. W

(720612-6)

EX
. 1

0"
 V

.C
.T

. S
.S

.
(7

20
61

2-
6)

EX. 12" V.C.T. S.S.

(720612-7)

TOP OF BANK
EXISITNG

20' R.O.W.
DEDICATION

PP
PP

PP

PP

PP

PP

10 L.S. BUFFER

EX FH

S

EX. 30' DRAIN. ESMT.
VOL. 73147, PG 1060

M.R.D.C.T.

EX. 15' UTILITY ESMT.
INST. NO. 201100204171

O.P.R.D.C.T.

EX. 20' UTILITY ESMT.
INST. NO. 201100204171

O.P.R.D.C.T.

PROP. 15'
CITY UTILITY

ESMT

HCHC

HC

HC

HC

HC

GAS
MRKR

N
 4

6°
08

'4
2"

 E
 3

92
.9

4'

S45°44'10"E 236.59'

L=63.37' R=623.00'
Δ=5°49'41"

CH=S49°08'06"E 63.34'

N43°57'18" W 147.32'

S7
3°

13
'42

"W
 7

4.
16

'

N54°57'18"W  94.68'

N 50°35'18" W
25.72'

S 
46

°0
8'

42
" W

 3
19

.0
1'

CITY OF GARLAND
VOL. 73067, PG. 2910 D.R.D.C.T.

JOSE GARCIA &
ARMANDO GARCIA

INST. NO. 201400213390
O.P.R.D.C.TLOT 3, BLOCK 1

HOMETOWNE AT GARLAND
INST. NO. 201100204171

D.R.D.C.T.

CASTLE DRIVE
80' R.O.W.

EX. ASPHALT ROAD

TO
YA

H
 C

R
EE

K 
LA

N
E

50
' R

.O
.W

.

BRADFIELD CREEK

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
10' - 0"

ASPHALT SHINGLES 
OVER 30# BUILDING 
PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM ASPHALT SHINGLES 
OVER 30# BUILDING 
PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM

MAX BULIDING WIDTH

77' - 8"
8"

 / 
1'

-0
"

16' - 4 3/4"

14' - 5 1/2"

17' - 7 1/4"
17' - 7"

16' - 4 3/4"

14' - 3 1/2" 14' - 5 1/2"
16' - 4 3/4"

17' - 7 1/4"

17' - 7" 16' - 4 3/4"

14' - 3 1/2"

7' - 10 1/4" 7' - 10 1/4"

2' - 2 1/8" 21' - 3 1/2" 5' - 11 7/8" 18' - 11 1/4" 6' - 0" 21' - 3 1/2" 2' - 0" 2' - 1 1/8" 21' - 3 1/2" 5' - 11 7/8" 18' - 11 1/4" 6' - 0" 21' - 3 1/2" 2' - 0"

77' - 7 1/4"

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
10' - 0"

ASPHALT SHINGLES 
OVER 30# BUILDING 
PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM
ASPHALT SHINGLES 
OVER 30# BUILDING 
PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM
16' - 4 3/4"

17' - 7"

13' - 8"

14' - 3 1/2" 12' - 11 3/4" 16' - 7 1/4"

9' - 5 1/2" 7' - 11"

12' - 11 3/4"

16' - 7 1/4"

14' - 3 1/2"
14' - 5 1/2" 17' - 7 1/4"

16' - 4 3/4"

13' - 7 1/4"

2' - 7 3/4"12' - 10 1/2"8' - 9 1/4"14' - 11 1/2"14' - 8"14' - 11 1/2"17' - 1 1/4"

86' - 0 1/8"
11' - 1 1/4"6' - 0"14' - 11 1/2"8' - 9 1/4"13' - 1 1/4"2' - 5 1/8"

56' - 4 1/4"

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
10' - 0"

ASPHALT SHINGLES 
OVER 30# BUILDING 
PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM ASPHALT SHINGLES 
OVER 30# BUILDING 
PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM

A-800
01

14' - 5 1/2"

16' - 4 3/4"

17' - 7 1/4"

16' - 4 3/4"

14' - 3 1/2"

7' - 10 1/4"

14' - 5 1/2"

7' - 11"

16' - 4 3/4"

17' - 7 1/4"
17' - 7"

16' - 4 3/4"

2' - 1 1/4" 21' - 3 3/8" 6' - 0 1/8" 18' - 10 3/4" 6' - 0 1/4" 21' - 3 1/2" 2' - 0"

77' - 7 1/4"
2' - 1 3/4" 21' - 2 7/8" 5' - 11 3/8" 18' - 11 7/8" 5' - 11 3/4" 21' - 3 1/2" 2' - 0"

77' - 7 1/4"

Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
10' - 0"

ASPHALT SHINGLES 
OVER 30# BUILDING 
PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM ASPHALT SHINGLES 
OVER 30# BUILDING 
PAPER, TYP

BRICK VENEER SYSTEM

7' - 11"

13' - 8"

16' - 4 3/4"

17' - 7"

14' - 3 1/2" 12' - 11 3/4"
16' - 7 1/4"

12' - 11 3/4"

16' - 7 1/4"

14' - 3 1/2"

14' - 5 1/2"
17' - 7 1/4"

13' - 7 1/4"

2' - 5 1/8" 13' - 1 1/4" 8' - 9 1/4" 14' - 11 1/2" 6' - 0" 11' - 1 1/4"

56' - 4 1/4"

6' - 0 1/8" 14' - 11 1/2" 14' - 8" 14' - 11 1/2" 8' - 9 1/4" 12' - 10 3/4" 2' - 7 1/2"

85' - 11 3/4"

8:12 ROOF PITCH, TYP.

MULTI-PANE W/ 
SIMULATED DIVIDED 
LITE, TYP.

LOUVER IN GABLES,TYP

11' - 1 1/4"

RE
G
IS
TR
A
TI
O
N

CO
N
SU
LT
A
N
TS

A
RC
H
IT
EC
T

SH
EE
T 
IN
FO
RM
A
TI
O
N

P
RO
JE
CT
 IN
FO
RM
A
TI
O
N

M
EP
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
 C
O
N
SU
LT
A
N
T

R
ED
FO
R
D
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
IN
G

G
A
R
Y
 A
. R
A
D
FO
R
D
, P
.E
.

21
4-
21
5-
44
37

C
IV
IL
 &
 S
TR
U
C
TU
R
A
L 
EN
G
IN
N
ER

M
O
N
K
 C
O
N
SU
LT
IN
G
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
S,
 IN
C

G
ER
A
LD
 E
. M
O
N
K
, P
E

97
2-
27
2-
17
63

C
a
se
 N
u
m
b
er
: 2
30
22
8-
1

A-201
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

TH
E 
H
O
M
ES
 O
N
 C
A
ST
LE

G
H
FC

05.30.23

19
22
 C
A
ST
LE
 D
R
IV
E

G
A
R
LA
N
D
, T
EX
A
S

CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS

11.15.23

 1/8" = 1'-0"01 EAST ELEVATIONS

 1/8" = 1'-0"02 SOUTH ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"03 WEST ELEVATIONS

 1/8" = 1'-0"04 NORTH ELEVATION

D. A.

B.C.

BULDING E BULDING A

BULDING C BULDING B

BULDING CBULDING D

BULDING A BULDING D

No. Date

Architectural elements
The proposed design attempts to fit within the residential 
context and most closely aligns with the intent of Section 4.84 of the 
GDC. A deviation is requested to utilize the GDC
residential building design per Section 4.84 of the GDC is requested to 
facilitate the smaller residential scale.

The three elements designed per Section 4.84 of the GDC are:
i. Multiple pane windows featuring divided light or simulated divided light
ii. Minimum 8:12 roof pitch
iii. Gables with windows

a. Note that a deviation is requested to allow for a decorative 
louvre be provided in the gables. This is requested to improve air 
circulation in the attic space as an environmental & energy 
strategy

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



Level 1
0' - 0"

Level 2
10' - 0"

56' - 4"

11' - 1"6' - 0" 11' - 1" 6' - 0"

ARCHIECTURAL ELEMENT 1:
GABLE W/ WINDOW, TYP.
(LOUVER IF AMENDED)

ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENT 2:
8:12 ROOF PITCH

ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENT 3:
MULTIPLE PANE WINDOW W/ 
SIMULATED DIVIDED LITE

16' - 7 1/4" 16' - 7 1/4"

14' - 3 1/2" 14' - 5 1/2"

17' - 7 1/4"

13' - 7 1/4"

17' - 7"

16' - 4 3/4"

13' - 8"

14' - 3 1/2"

13' - 1 1/4" 8' - 8 7/8" 14' - 11 7/8"2' - 5 1/8" 14' - 11 1/2" 8' - 8" 6' - 0" 14' - 11 1/8" 8' - 9 5/8" 12' - 10 3/4" 2' - 7 1/2"

RE
G
IS
TR
A
TI
O
N

CO
N
SU
LT
A
N
TS

A
RC
H
IT
EC
T

SH
EE
T 
IN
FO
RM
A
TI
O
N

P
RO
JE
CT
 IN
FO
RM
A
TI
O
N

M
EP
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
 C
O
N
SU
LT
A
N
T

R
ED
FO
R
D
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
IN
G

G
A
R
Y
 A
. R
A
D
FO
R
D
, P
.E
.

21
4-
21
5-
44
37

C
IV
IL
 &
 S
TR
U
C
TU
R
A
L 
EN
G
IN
N
ER

M
O
N
K
 C
O
N
SU
LT
IN
G
 E
N
G
IN
EE
R
S,
 IN
C

G
ER
A
LD
 E
. M
O
N
K
, P
E

97
2-
27
2-
17
63

C
a
se
 N
u
m
b
er
: 2
30
22
8-
1

A-202
PD AMENDMENT ELEVATION

TH
E 
H
O
M
ES
 O
N
 C
A
ST
LE

G
H
FC

05.30.23

19
22
 C
A
ST
LE
 D
R
IV
E

G
A
R
LA
N
D
, T
EX
A
S

CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS

11.15.23

 1/8" = 1'-0"1 NORTH ELEVATION PD AMENDMENT

ZONING CALCULATIONS:

ELEVATION AREA = 520 SQ. FT.
WINDOWS & DOORS = 134.75 SQ. FT
WINDOW & DOOR % = 25.9%

HORIZONTAL LENGHT OF FACADE= 56'-4"
25% UNARTICULATED FACADE ALLOWED= 14'-1"
UNARTICULATED FACADE AS DESIGNED= 11'-1"

ZONING CALCULATIONS:

ELEVATION AREA = 797.75 SQ. FT.
WINDOWS & DOORS = 211.8 SQ. FT
WINDOW & DOOR % = 26.5%

HORIZONTAL LENGHT OF FACADE= 86'-0"
25% UNARTICULATED FACADE ALLOWED= 21'-6"
UNARTICULATED FACADE AS DESIGNED= 11'-1"

ELEVATION FACING CASTLE DRIVE

No. Date

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



 

   
 

               

Z 23-28 
 

  

View of the subject property  North of the subject property 

 

 

 

 

East of the subject property  

 

 

 

 

West of the subject property  



810

814
808

818820
822
824826

812
810808

806804
802

COURTE
NAY

PL

TOYAH CREEK LN

SAGE BRUSH ST
BL

UE
BO

NN
ET

 CI
R

MO
RR

ISO
N 

CT

CASTLE DR

DESERT
ROSE ST

AZALEA ST

DESERT R
OSE ST

TOWN BLUFF DR

MERIDIAN WY

HU
BB

AR
D 

DR

MORRISON DR

WOODNOTE LN

BAY SHORE DR

THORNHILL LN

WHITEOAK DR

SHOREHAVEN DR

WHITNEY DR

BLUE BONNET CIR

P D  7 3 - 9P D  7 3 - 9

P D  8 1 - 5 5P D  8 1 - 5 5

P D  0 7 - 1 8P D  0 7 - 1 8

P D  1 7 - 2 5P D  1 7 - 2 5

M F - 1M F - 1

P D  9 2 - 1 1P D  9 2 - 1 1

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  1 0 - 3 3P D  1 0 - 3 3

910

1833

1922
1925

1922

1541

914

1625

1540

834812

1933

1529

1917

1629

1910

1929

1521

1913

1921

1933

2006

1834
1909

1516

836

1525

1917

1537

1570

1601

601

1913

830

2004

1921

1617

1905

16211573

1929

1513

906

1517

1918

804

2002

1926

802

1909

1934

1537

1609

1925

1902

1613

1938

1930

902

1605

1545

1569

1622

832

1906

1533

1536

1541

1533

1914
1901

1983

1802

1775

1755

1715

1705
1702

1710

1718

1726
1734

1742
1750

1766

1774

1804

851

1834

1854

1874

840

841

816

1615

1471

816

801
2009

ZONING MAP Z 23-28
¯

0 150 300 Feet 1 inch = 228 feet

1922 Castle Drive

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

INDICATES 
NOTIFICATION AREA



To date we have not received any responses for this case. 



GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 3. b. 3. b.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 03/25/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: Z 24-04 Golden Bee Trove, LLC (District 4)
Summary:Summary:
Consideration of the application of Golden Bee Trove LLCGolden Bee Trove LLC, requesting approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for a
Used Goods, Retail Sales (Indoors) Use and 2) a Plan on a property zoned  Planned Development (PD) District 18-
40.This property is located at 5501 Broadway Boulevard, Suite 105. (District 4) (File Z 24-04)

AttachmentsAttachments
Z 24-04 Golden Bee Trove LLC Report & Attachments (District 4)
Z 24-04 Golden Bee Trove LLC Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-04/District 4 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: March 25, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for a Used Goods, Retail Sales (Indoors) Use and 2) 
a Plan on a property zoned Planned Development (PD) District 18-40. 
 
LOCATION 
5501 Broadway Boulevard Suite 105 
 
 
APPLICANT 
Golden Bee Trove LLC 
 
 
OWNER 
Garland Broadway Shopping Center, Inc. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is developed with a 25,394 square-foot multi-tenant shopping center. 
The applicant wishes to move into Suite 105, a 530 square-foot suite to open a Used Goods, 
Retail Sales (Indoors) Use. 
 
 
SITE DATA 
The site is 2.01 acres and is accessed from two points along Broadway Boulevard and one 
point along Robin Road 

 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 18-40 with a Community 
Retail (CR) District base zoning. 

The Community Retail (CR) District is intended to accommodate a variety of retail, service, 
and business establishments that may or may not be designed in a shopping center 
configuration. The district may be used as a transition district between lower intensity retail 
or office uses and more intense uses. A CR district is generally appropriate along major 
transportation corridors, but is generally not appropriate in proximity to low-density 
residential districts without significant buffering and screening features. 

 
CONSIDERATIONS  
 
Specific Use Provision:    
1. The subject property is currently constructed with a 25,394 square-foot shopping center. 

The applicant is not proposing any changes to the property at this time. 
 

2. The proposed business is a thrift store that will sell both new and used items. The store 
will largely consist of clothing, furniture, fashion accessories, home décor, kitchen 



Page 2 of 3 
 

products, kids toys, and other household items. According to the applicant the goal is to 
provide a middle ground business between a standard retail store and a thrift store. 
 

3. The request does not trigger any additional screening or landscaping standards.  
 

4. The request does not trigger any building design standards. 
 
5. The applicant is requesting approval of a twenty (20) year Specific Use Provision. The 

SUP Time Period Guide recommends twenty (20) to thirty (30) years for a Used Goods, 
Retail Sales (indoors). 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan designates this property as 
Neighborhood Centers. 
 
Neighborhood Centers provide a mix of retail, services and community gathering places. 
This center should be appropriately scaled to adjacent residential areas. This type of center 
is predominantly, but not exclusively, non-residential. Neighborhood centers are served by 
local roads and transit routes. 
 
The use adds retail business activity to the area and is compatible with the Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 
Per the Economic Development Strategic Plan, the proposal is considered part of a “Retail 
Strip” building type and will generate sales tax for the city. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The surrounding properties to the West are zoned Planned Development (PD) District 18-40 
for Single-Family uses, containing mostly empty lots and Single-Family homes. Properties to 
the North and South are also zoned Planned Development (PD) 18-40, for Community (CR) 
District Retail Uses. These properties contain various retail, restaurant, personal services, 
and office businesses. Finally, properties to the East across Broadway Boulevard are zoned 
Community Retail (CR) District and contain similar retail-oriented uses. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for a Used Goods, Retail Sales (Indoors) Use and 2) 
a Plan on a property zoned Community Retail (CR) District. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. SUP Conditions 
iii. Exhibits 
iv. Photos 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: April 16, 2024 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton Will Guerin, AICP 
Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454  



Page 3 of 3 
 
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov   

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


CANYON DR

BRO
ADW

AY BLVD

DUCK CREEK DR

KAREN ST

ROBIN RD

LOVING DR

MYERS DR

PAUL S
T

ROW
LE

TT R
D

LAREDO LN

SUNDOWN LN

SADDLEBACK RD

P D  8 4 - 6 9P D  8 4 - 6 9

P D  8 3 - 1 3 5P D  8 3 - 1 3 5

P DP D
8 3 - 6 28 3 - 6 2

P D  8 5 - 4 3P D  8 5 - 4 3

S F - 7S F - 7 P D  8 3 - 6 1P D  8 3 - 6 1
2 F2 F P D  8 5 - 4 3P D  8 5 - 4 3

S F - 7S F - 7
S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  0 6 - 7 3P D  0 6 - 7 3

C RC R
P D  8 0 - 4 2P D  8 0 - 4 2

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

P D  8 4 - 7 9P D  8 4 - 7 9

SS
1 7 - 1 71 7 - 1 7

P D  1 8 - 4 0P D  1 8 - 4 0

P DP D
2 0 - 4 12 0 - 4 1

S F AS F A

P D  1 8 - 4 0P D  1 8 - 4 0

P DP D
1 8 - 4 01 8 - 4 0

P DP D
2 2 - 6 62 2 - 6 6

504

5410

5509

505

5525

5642

5418

6541

5514

6575

5645

5638

6531

510

5665

5513

6535

5654
5650

5626

5509

6573

5662

5529

5666
5670

5505

5521

5505

5513

5605

6521

5669

5502

5406

509

5661

5501

5514

5518

5425

5615

5625

5658

5512 5506

5630

6523

6551

501

6565

5653

5510

5513

5602

5481

5606

5621

5674

5516

5637

5657

5622

5517

6561

5633

6527

5649

5435

5634

5402

5520

5629

5414

5445

5475

5485
5495

5604
5606

5511

5515

5509

5479

6545

5516

ZONING MAP Z 24-04
¯

0 130 260 Feet
1 inch = 204 feet

5501 Broadway Boulevard, Suite 105

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUESTINDICATES TENANT SPACE



EXHIBIT B 

 
 

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 24-04 
 

5501 Broadway Boulevard, Suite 105 
 

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific 

Use Provision is to allow a Used Goods, Retail Sales 
(Indoors) Use. 

 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 

shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 
 

III. General Regulations:  All regulations of the Planned 
Development (PD) District 18-40 for Community Retail 
(CR) District Uses and Site Development Standards as 
set forth in Chapter 2 and 4 of the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included by 
reference and shall apply, except as otherwise 
specified by this ordinance. 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 
Site Layout: The site shall be in general conformance 
with the approved Site Plan labeled Exhibit C. In the 
event of conflict between the conditions and the site 
plan, the written conditions listed below are to 
apply. 

 
V. Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which this 

Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the GDC, federal, and state law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date 
of this SUP; 
 



SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 24-04 
Page 2 

EXHIBIT B 

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 
premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 

 
F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a 

primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within 
the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal 
law. 

 
The termination of utilities on the premises for a 
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of 
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to 
prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 

 
 
VI. Specific Regulations:   
 

A. SUP Time Period: The Specific Use Provision for a Used 
goods, Retail Sales Use shall be in effect for a 
period of twenty (20) years. 
 

B. Site Plan: The Used Goods, Retail Sales (Indoors) Use 
shall be limited to the approximately 530 square-foot 
tenant space as shown in Exhibit C. 

 
 

 
 

 



goldenbeetrove@gmail.com
Rectangle

goldenbeetrove@gmail.com
Stamp

goldenbeetrove@gmail.com
Free text
Suite 						
5509-A					
5509-B					
5509-C					
5505-A					
5505-B					
5501-102					
5501-104					
5501-105					
5501-106					
5501-107					
5501-109					
5501-110					
5501-111					
5501-112
5501-113
5481-115 
5481-116		
5481-118			

Total 25,394 SQ/FT

goldenbeetrove@gmail.com
Free text
SQ/FT
1,296
1,540
1,424
4,285
1,958
1,040
1,000
530
796
1,117
1,100
860
682
1,060
1,544
1,569 
1,026
2,567



   
 

 

      Z 24-04 
 
 

  

View of the subject property looking West from 
Broadway Boulevard 

View from the subject property looking East across 
Broadway Blvd 

 
 
 

 

View looking North on Broadway Boulevard View looking South down Broadway Blvd 













GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 3. c. 3. c .             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 03/25/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: Z 24-11 Kimley Horn (District 7)
Summary:Summary:
Consideration of the application of Kimley HornKimley Horn, requesting approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Planned
Development (PD) District 99-49 for Neighborhood Office Uses to Community Retail (CR) District; 2) a Specific Use
Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use and 3) a Variance to Section 4.39 of the GDC regarding perimeter
screening adjacent to residential development. This property is located at 2301 Arapaho Road (District 7) (File Z 24-
11)

AttachmentsAttachments
Z 24-11 Kimley Horn Report & Attachments (District 7)
Z 24-11 Kimley Horn Responses



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 24-11/District 7 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: March 25, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Planned Development (PD) District 99-49 for 
Neighborhood Office Uses to Community Retail (CR) District; 2) a Specific Use Provision for 
a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use and 3) a Variance to Section 4.39 of the GDC regarding 
perimeter screening adjacent to residential development. 
 
LOCATION 
2301 Arapaho Road 
 
 
APPLICANT 
Kimley Horn 
 
 
OWNER 
John D. Gonzales Trustee 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property us currently unimproved. The applicant proposes to construct a 
restaurant with a drive-through service [“Swig”].  
 
SITE DATA 
The subject property contains approximately 1.15 acres and has approximately 271 linear 
feet of frontage along Arapaho Road and 288 linear feet of frontage along Holford Road. The 
site can be accessed from Holford Road and Arapaho Road. 

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 99-49 for Neighborhood 
Office Uses. 
 
The Neighborhood Office (NO) district is intended to create an appropriate setting for low 
intensity office and professional uses. The district may be used as a transition district 
between residential uses and more intense uses. With appropriate buffers and landscaping, 
this district may be located contiguous to residential districts. Allowed uses should be 
compatible with adjacent residential areas by limiting heights to one story and may not 
include uses that create excessive amounts of traffic, noise, trash, or late-night business 
operations. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
 
 

1. Change in Zoning: 
 

The applicant proposes to rezone the property to Community Retail (CR) District. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

The Community Retail (CR) district is intended to accommodate a variety of retail, 
service, and business establishments that may or may not be designed in a shopping 
center configuration. The district may be used as a transition district between lower 
intensity retail or office uses and more intense uses. A CR district is generally 
appropriate along major transportation corridors but is generally not appropriate in 
proximity to low-density residential districts without significant buffering and 
screening features. 

2. Specific Use Provision 
 

A Specific Use Provision is required for a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use in the 
Community Retail (CR) District. The applicant proposes a 705 square-foot restaurant 
[Swig] with a drive through to sell various types of drinks made by mixing base 
name-brand sodas such as Coca-Cola or Dr. Pepper with add-ins such as flavored 
syrups, creams and fruit-purees. 

The applicant is proposing a time period of twenty-five (25) years. The SUP time 
period guide recommends between twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) years.  

3. Parking: 
 
The site plan (Exhibit C) meets the parking requirements per the GDC. 
 

4. Screening and Landscaping: 
 
The GDC requires perimeter screening when a non-residential development is 
adjacent a residential development. The property is abutting a residential 
development to the north. The landscape plan (Exhibit D) reflects an eight (8)-foot 
tall masonry wall; however, it does not extend the entire length of the property line 
due to a large power pole and utility easement. There are low-level screening shrubs 
proposed in lieu of the screening wall extension. 
 
Additionally, large canopy trees are required every twenty-five (25) feet along the 
masonry wall. The large canopy trees are located at the edge of the drive-through 
due to a large utility easement.  
 
The landscape plan (Exhibit D) meets all other applicable screening and landscaping 
standards per the GDC.  
 

5. Building Design 

The building elevations (Exhibit E) for the proposed restaurant with Drive-Through 
are in compliance with the Garland Development Code (GDC). 

6. Signage 

The applicant is not requesting any signage deviations with this request. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Neighborhood Centers 
for the subject site. Description Neighborhood centers provide a mix of retail, services and 
community gathering places. This center should be appropriately scaled to adjacent 
residential areas. 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 
The proposed use complies with the Comprehensive Plan and offers a supportive use to the 
area.  
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 
The proposal is considered “Stand Alone Commercial” per the Economic Development 
Strategic Plan; this category represents a property tax revenue per acre at $5,380. In 
addition, the proposal will add sales tax revenue to the City.  
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the north are zoned Planned Development (PD) District 83-143; these 
properties are developed with single-family homes. The property to the east, across Holford 
Road, is zoned Agricultural (AG) District; it is currently unimproved. The property to the 
south, across Arapaho Road, is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 08-45; it is 
undeveloped. The property to the west is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 99-49; it 
is unimproved. 
 
The subject property is located at the intersection of Holford Road and Arapaho Road, which 
are Type “D” and Type “B” thoroughfares and appropriate for Community Retail zoning. The 
proposed use is generally compatible with the surrounding area. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Planned Development (PD) District 99-49 for 
Neighborhood Office Uses to Community Retail (CR) District; 2) a Specific Use Provision for 
a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use and 3) a Variance to Section 4.39 of the GDC regarding 
perimeter screening adjacent to residential development. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. SUP Conditions 
iii. Exhibits 
iv. Photos 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: April 16, 2024 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Nabiha Ahmed Will Guerin, AICP 
Lead Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2453  
nahmed@garlandtx.gov   

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


48
05

48
13

48
17

48
21

48
09

HOLF
ORD R

D

TR
EE TO

P LN

GLEN HEIGHTS DR

SWISHER PL

WALNUT
GROVE LN

JASMINE LN

ARAPAHO RD

S F - 7S F - 7 S F - 7S F - 7

P D  8 3 - 1 4 3P D  8 3 - 1 4 3

P D  9 9 - 4 9P D  9 9 - 4 9

P D  0 2 - 2 8P D  0 2 - 2 8

P D  2 0 - 3 5P D  2 0 - 3 5

P D  0 8 - 4 5P D  0 8 - 4 5

A GA G

P DP D
1 4 - 0 91 4 - 0 9

S  2 0 - 4 3S  2 0 - 4 3

A GA G

P D  2 1 - 0 1P D  2 1 - 0 1

P D  2 0 - 3 5P D  2 0 - 3 5

P D / SP D / S
2 3 - 4 42 3 - 4 4

P D  2 2 - 6 4P D  2 2 - 6 4

22
42

22
14

21
01

22
25 22
05

22
17

22
22

21
09

48
01

22
26

22
02

21
17

22
34 22
18

21
1822

06

22
21

22
17

22
46

49
05

22
18

23
75

21
13

22
26

22
38 22

10

22
30

22
29

22
10

22
09

22
25

22
37

22
05

21
22

22
33

21
25

21
21

22
22

22
13

49
01

22
01

21
10

22
21

22
29 22

01

21
02

22
13

21
05

22
09

22
30

23
50

22
66

24
02

23
02

23
01

24
01

23
59

23
67

23
87

23
83

23
79

23
71

23
63

20
55

24
76

46
88

ZONING MAP Z 24-11
¯

0 110 220 Feet
1 inch = 170 feet

2301 Arapaho Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 

 
 
 

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 24-11 
 

2301 Arapaho Road 
 

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific 

Use Provision is to allow a Restaurant, Drive-Through. 
 

II.  Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 
shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 

 
III. General Regulations:  All regulations of the Community 

Retail (CR) District  and Site Development Standards 
as set forth in Chapter 2 and 4 of the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included by 
reference and shall apply, except as otherwise 
specified by this ordinance. 

 
IV. Development Plans: 

 
Site Layout: The site shall be in general conformance 
with the approved Site Plan, Landscape Plan, and 
Elevations labeled Exhibit C, Exhibit D, and Exhibit 
E. In the event of conflict between the conditions and 
the site plan, the written conditions listed below are 
to apply. 

 
V. Abandonment:  In the event the land use for which this 

Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the GDC, federal, and state law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date 
of this SUP; 
 



SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 24-11 
Page 2 

EXHIBIT B 

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 
premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 

 
F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a 

primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within 
the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal 
law. 

 
The termination of utilities on the premises for a 
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of 
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to 
prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 

 
 
VI.  Specific Regulations:   
 

A. Time Period:  The Specific Use Provision shall have 
a twenty-five (25) year time period. 

 
 

 
 



Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT D



Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



   
 

 

      Z 24-11 
 
 

  

View of the subject property East of the subject property 

 
 

 

 

North of the subject property West of the subject property 











GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 4. a. 4. a.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 03/25/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: SL 24-01 Silvano Ramos (District 2)
Summary:Summary:
Consideration of the application of Silvano RamosSilvano Ramos , requesting  approval of a variance to Section 4.29 (C)(10) of the
Garland Development Code requiring compliance of screening and landscaping requirements for an upgraded parking
lot. This property is located at 409 and 411 East Walnut Street. (District 2) (File SL 24-01)

AttachmentsAttachments
SL 24-01 Silvano Ramos Report & Attachments



 

Planning Report 
File No: SL 24-01/District 2 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: March 25, 2024 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of a variance to Section 4.29 (C)(10) of the Garland Development Code requiring 
compliance of screening and landscaping requirements for an upgraded parking lot. 
 
 
LOCATION 
409 / 411 East Walnut Street 
 
 
APPLICANT 
Silvano Ramos 
 
 
OWNER 
AMT 409/411 E. Walnut Series LLC 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property is zoned Industrial (IN) District and is developed with a building and 
parking area. The building is not currently occupied. The applicant proposes to upgrade the 
existing asphalt parking lot to concrete, and full compliance of GDC landscaping standards is 
triggered as a result; the applicant is requesting relief from full compliance.  
 
 
SITE DATA 
The subject site contains approximately 0.54 acres and has approximately 173 linear feet of 
frontage along East Walnut Street and 225 linear feet from East Walnut Circle.  The site can 
be accessed from both street frontages. 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
1. The applicant is requesting a variance to Section 4.29 (C)(10). Per the Garland 

Development Code (GDC), “resurfacing an existing parking lot in its original 
configuration does not constitute a reconstruction or development of a parking lot and 
therefore would not be subject to screening and landscaping standards as set forth in 
this Article 3. However, if an asphalt or otherwise substandard surface parking lot is 
voluntarily or involuntarily reconstructed to meet current standards, the newly 
constructed parking lot is subject to the requirements, as applicable, of this Article 3.” 

2. The applicant proposes to upgrade the existing asphalt surface on site to concrete. The 
applicant does not propose full compliance with screening and landscaping standards; 
however, landscape planters are proposed in front of the building to provide partial 
compliance and to add some landscaping to the site.  

3. Per the Garland Development Code, the Plan Commission may consider and grant full or 
partial development variances including screening and landscape variances.  



Page 2 of 3 
 

Per Section 5.12(A), the following considerations shall be made when reviewing a 
requested development variance: 

• The existence of special circumstances or conditions arising from the physical 
surroundings, shape, topography, or other features affecting the land, which are 
intrinsic to the land parcel itself and which are not self-imposed by the applicant, 
owner or user of the subject land parcel, such that the strict application of the 
requirements of Chapter 3, or the certain specific requirements cited in Chapter 2 
and Chapter 4, of this GDC and reflected in Table 5-1, that may be varied under this 
Division 4, to the proposed use would create an unnecessary hardship or inequity 
upon or for the applicant, or would deprive the applicant of the reasonable and 
beneficial use of the land. Any unnecessary hardship or inequity must be 
distinguishable from a mere inconvenience or a mere financial burden in developing 
the land, and does not include a legitimate cost-benefit proportionality inequity which 
shall be submitted, processed and considered in accordance with Article 1, Division 2 
of this Chapter 5; 

• The circumstances causing the special conditions described in Section 5.12(A)(1) 
above do not similarly affect all or most similarly situated properties in the vicinity of 
the applicant's/petitioner's land; 

• The development variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right of the applicant/petitioner; 

• Granting the development variance will not be detrimental to the public health, 
safety, or welfare, and will not be injurious to other property within the area; 

• Granting the development variance will not have the effect of preventing the orderly 
use and enjoyment of other land within the area in accordance with the provisions of 
this GDC, and will not be adversely affect the rights of owners or residents of 
surrounding property; 

• The special circumstances intrinsic to the subject land parcel and the resultant 
inequity thereof as described in Section 5.12(A)(1) above, is not caused wholly or in 
substantial part by the applicant/petitioner; 

• The request for a development variance is not based exclusively on the 
applicant's/petitioner's desire for increased financial gain from the property, or to 
reduce an existing financial hardship; and 

• The degree of variation requested by the development variance is the minimum 
amount and extent necessary to satisfactorily meet the needs of the 
applicant/petitioner, and to also satisfy the general spirit and intent of the minimum 
development standards in this GDC. 

Further, per Section 5.12(B), the applicant/petitioner bears the burden of proof to 
demonstrate that the application of a requirement that may be varied under this Division 
4 and that is normally uniformly applied imposes a disproportionate burden on the 
applicant/petitioner. 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

4. The proposed plan is attached for consideration and informational purposes. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of a variance to Section 4.29 (10)(C) of the Garland Development Code requiring 
full compliance of screening and landscaping requirements for an upgraded parking lot. Full 
compliance with the GDC presents physical challenges for the subject site, which is built out 
with existing improvements.  It is noted that the applicant is upgrading the site from an 
inferior lot surface to concrete. The applicant is proposing planters alongside the building to 
add landscape aesthetics to the site where they do not exist today. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii.  Exhibit 
iii.  Photos 
  
 
PREPARED BY:      
Will Guerin, AICP 
Director of Planning 
Planning and Development 
972-205-2449 
wguerin@garlandtx.gov 
 
 

mailto:wguerin@garlandtx.gov


TEAROSE DR

GREENCOVE DRSH
O

R
EC

R
EST D

R

E WALNUT ST

W
ALNUT CIRCLE EAST

SHOREHAVEN DR

S F - 7S F - 7S  0 9 - 3 6S  0 9 - 3 6

I NI N

I NI N

H CH C

I NI N

S  2 3 - 4 2S  2 3 - 4 2

309

618611

619

627

704

506

623

706

406

321

401

301

622

506

410

502

615

629

421

634

405

702

501

701

617

504

708

402

501

405

410

508

411

309

409

630

624

626

401

375

415

LOCATION MAP SL 24-01
¯

0 60 120 Feet
1 inch = 102 feet

409 and 411 East Walnut Street

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



1~-~-,~·,l;·~·J 

61' 

I 

i 

411 E. WALNUT ST 
BUILDING 

I~· •Ji;· ~-I l~·>li!·~·I 

-~ BUSHES SHRUB TYPE) 
(BOXWOOD 

NEW CONCRETE AREA 

b 
88' 

C GREEN GRASS AREA ~ 
i 
I 

Notes: 
- Remove existing damage asphalt. E. WALNUT ST. 
- New Concrete: 
- #4 Rebar 18" apart 
- 3500 psi Concret 5" thick 
- Plant 11 + boxwood shrub bushes 

~ 
~ -1,, 

\ 
~ 

Concrete on this 
area is in good 
conditions 

GREEN GRASS AREA 

< w 
0:: 
< 
(/) 
(/) 

'2 
C) 

z 
w 
w 
0:: 
C) 

'---------~--------,----------,------------------- ---i 
I Existing Plans for: 
f Drawing #412G24 Date 02/20/24 Dwg by JTR ABBA INVESTMENTS GROUP 
! FUENTE DE VIDA DISTRIBUTORS 

411 E. WALNUT ST 
GARLAND TX 75040 Sheet a/01 Revised 03/02/24 N/A 



GARLANDGARLAND   
  

  
Plan CommissionPlan Commission 4. b. 4. b.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 03/25/2024  
Item Tit le:Item Tit le: GDC Amendments
Summary:Summary:
Consideration to amend various Sections of Chapter 1, "General Provisions," Chapter 2, "Zoning Regulations,"
Chapter 3, "Subdivision Regulations," Chapter 4, "Site Development," Chapter 5, "Relief Procedures & Enforcement,"
and Chapter 7, "Downtown (DT) District" of the Garland Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas.

AttachmentsAttachments
GDC Amendments - Detail Plans Concept Plans
GDC Ordinance



 

Planning Report 
Agenda Item: GDC amendments 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: March 25, 2024 
 
ISSUE 
Consider amending various Sections of Chapter 1, “General Provisions,” Chapter 2, “Zoning 
Regulations,” Chapter 3, “Subdivision Regulations,” Chapter 4, “Site Development,” Chapter 
5, “Relief Procedures & Enforcement,” and Chapter 7, “Downtown (DT) District” of the 
Garland Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Garland currently requires Detail Plans and other detailed site plans with Planned 
Development and Specific Use Provision applications.  In 2023, following interviews with 
developers and presenting findings to the Development Services Committee, it was 
recommended by the Committee to reduce the “front-loaded” nature of Garland’s zoning 
application requirements.  The City Council has directed staff to bring forward an ordinance 
that amends the zoning process requirements in Garland as it pertains to Planned 
Developments and Specific Use Provisions. It is proposed to require Concept Plans instead, 
thus reducing the level of details and engineering-level documents required prior to zoning 
entitlements.  
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  

1. It is proposed to eliminate the Detail Plan and detailed site plan requirements with 
Planned Developments and Specific Use Provisions, and instead require Concept 
Plans. This will reduce significant costs, and most likely time, for developers and 
development professionals during the zoning stage of the development process, 
where initial land use entitlements are being sought.  The intent of the change is to 
establish a more development-friendly process for the City of Garland. Such detailed 
requirements will continue to be required during the permitting stage of the process, 
following zoning approval.  
 

2. In addition to establishing a more development-friendly process competitive with 
other cities in the region, the proposed changes offer an opportunity to utilize 
Planned Developments in a manner that establishes unique standards, conditions 
and “tradeoffs” for flexibilities sought by developers, with the intent of creating 
quality development in Garland.  
 

3. The purpose of a Concept Plan is to provide a general layout of the proposed 
development.  The City’s approval of a Concept Plan will allow the applicant to 
determine whether the City is generally in agreement with the land usage and 
development proposed, and will provide the City with an overall impression of the 
development proposed.  A Concept Plan shall be construed to be an illustration of the 
layout and development concepts only and not an exact engineered representation of 
the specific development proposed. 
 

4. In the draft ordinance, the fee section in Chapter 1 is proposed to be amended to 
reflect Concept Plans, as well as eliminating the “30-day shot clock” fees which no 
longer apply due to recent State law changes.  These changes are anticipated to be 
minimal in terms of revenue impact.   

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

5. This item was directed by the City Council during their December 4, 2023 Work 
Session. The Plan Commission was briefed on this item during the January 8, 2024 
meeting.  
 

6. The draft ordinance as drafted by the City Attorney’s Office is attached for the Plan 
Commission’s review.  

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval to amend various Sections of Chapter 1, “General Provisions,” Chapter 2, “Zoning 
Regulations,” Chapter 3, “Subdivision Regulations,” Chapter 4. “Site Development,” Chapter 
5, “Relief Procedures & Enforcement,” and Chapter 7, “Downtown (DT) District” of the 
Garland Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas. 
 
 
PREPARED BY:      
Will Guerin, AICP  
Director of Planning  
972-205-2449  
wguerin@garlandtx.gov  

mailto:wguerin@garlandtx.gov


1 
 

ORDINANCE NO.____ 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 1, “GENERAL 
PROVISIONS,” CHAPTER 2, “ZONING REGULATIONS,” CHAPTER 3, 
“SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS,” CHAPTER 4, “SITE DEVELOPMENT,” 
CHAPTER 5, “RELIEF PROCEDURES & ENFORCEMENT,” AND CHAPTER 7, 
“DOWNTOWN (DT) DISTRICT” OF THE GARLAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF 
THE CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARLAND, 
TEXAS: 

 
Section 1 

 
That Chapter 1, “General Provisions” of the Garland 
Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas, is hereby 
amended in part to read as follows: 
 
“ 
... 
 
Section 1.12 Procedures of the Development Review Committee. 
 

(A) Types of Applications Reviewed. The DRC shall review 
the following types of applications:  
 
(1) An application for a Concept Plan for a Planned 

Development District, along with any related 
application requirements. 

... 
 
Section 1.14 Initiation of Application. 
 
... 

 
(D) Application Appointments. Zoning, development plan, 

redevelopment, concept plan, or land subdivision 
applications may be filed, by appointment only, with 
the Planning Director, upon the date and time 
identified in the Development Application Schedule, 
as provided in Section 1.18 of this GDC. The Planning 
Director may limit the number of applications filed 
on a particular day if the Planning Director 
determines that it is not administratively feasible 
to process any additional applications within 30 days. 

... 



2 
 

 
 
 
Section 1.15 Deleted. 
 
... 
 
Section 1.21 Technical Review Meeting. 
 
... 
 

(C) Applications Requiring Technical Review Meeting. Pre-
filing documents and working files that require a 
technical review meeting (unless otherwise determined 
as unnecessary by the City) include documents related 
to a proposed application for the following:  

 
(1) Specific Use Provision; 

 
(2) Concept Plan (submitted as part of a Planned 

Development application; 
... 
 
Section 1.100 Fees. 
 
The following fees shall apply to all filings, except where 
otherwise noted:  

(A) Zoning change or specific use provision 
applications.  

Type of Application Fee 

Planned development (PD) zoning (new or 
revised concept plan) 

$4,600.00 + $50.00 
per acre 

Planned development - amendment of 
conditions 

$2,000.00 

Specific use provision - new construction 
or expansion 

$2,000.00 + $50.00 
per acre 

Specific use provision - use change $2,000.00 

Specific use provision - residential less 
than one (1) acre 

$500.00 (o - 1 acre) 



3 
 

Type of Application Fee 

Zoning change request $2,000.00 

Preliminary, final, or replats $1,000.00 + $50.00 
acre or portion 
thereof 

Residential replats/final plat involving 
residentially zoned platted property 

$1,000.00 + $50.00 
acre or portion 
thereof 

Amending plats $500.00 + $50.00 acre 
or portion thereof 

Minor plats $500.00 + $50.00 acre 
or portion thereof 

Plat vacation $500.00 + $50.00 acre 
or portion thereof 

Conveyance plats $500.00 + $50.00 acre 
or portion thereof 

Downtown development plan - less than 1 
acre 

$1,000.00 

Downtown development plan - 1 acre or 
above 

$6,000.00 

 

(B) Variance, appeal, waiver, and miscellaneous 
applications.  

 
Type of Application            Fee 

Alcohol distance $500.00 

Alley waiver $300.00 

Building line modification $150.00 

Building line modification, if board 
of adjustment appeal is also required 

None 



4 
 

Type of Application            Fee 

Development standards variance 
(screening and landscaping, signage) 

$350.00 

Alternative compliance $200.00 

Fence variance $250.00 

House conversion $800.00 

Downtown development plan/regulating 
plan (new construction - includes 
major waiver) 

$1,000.00 

Downtown minor waiver $250.00 

Reasonable accommodations $0.00 

Vested rights petition $0.00 

Sidewalk waiver $200.00 

Sign variance $250.00 

Tree removal permit (application fee 
only; tree mitigation fees required as 
applicable) 

$150.00 

Tree preservation variance $300.00 

Municipal setting designation $5,000.00 

 
(C) Zoning verification letters.  

Type         Fee 

Zoning verification letter              $200.00 (per DCAD Parcel ID) 

 
 
... 
 
Section 1.101 Refund Policy for Planning & Zoning Fees. 
 
...” 



5 
 

Section 2 
 
That Chapter 2, “Zoning Regulations” of the Garland 
Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas, is hereby 
amended in part to read as follows: 
 
“ 
... 
 
Section 2.04 General Provisions. 
 
... 

 
(B) Definitions. Following are definitions, general 

terms, and special terms used in this GDC that are 
related to the approval process for land development 
applications.  
 
(1) “Plan” means a subdivision development plan, 

including a subdivision plan, subdivision 
construction plan, site plan, concept plan, detail 
plan, land development application, and site 
development plan. 

... 
 
Section 2.05 Processing of Zoning Application, Plat, Plan, 

and Decision. 
... 

 
(F) Plan Commission - Public Hearing & Recommendation.  
 

... 
(5) Recommendation Deadline on a Plan. The Plan 

Commission shall recommend approval, approval 
with conditions, or disapproval of a plan.  

 
(6) Decision Deadline on a Plat. The Plan Commission 

shall approve, approve with conditions, or 
disapprove a plat within 30 days after date the 
plat is filed. A plat shall be considered approved 
by the Plan Commission unless it is disapproved 
within the 30 day period. 

 
(7) Deleted. 
 
(8) Deleted. 
 



6 
 

(9) Postponement of Decision. The Plan Commission may, 
by written request of the applicant, postpone 
making a decision on the application of a plan or 
plat. Upon approval of the Plan Commission, the 
postponement may be for a period not to exceed 30 
calendar days, and does not require additional 
public notice if such postponement is to a date 
certain. An applicant may request multiple 30-day 
postponements, but each must be approved by the 
Plan Commission. The Plan Commission may not 
request or require an applicant to request 
postponement, waive a deadline or other approval 
procedure under this GDC or Chapter 212, 
Subchapter A of the Texas Local Government Code. 

... 
 
Section 2.07 Purpose, Applicability, Nature and Size of 

District. 
 
(A) Purpose. The purpose of a Planned Development zoning 

district (PD district) is to provide for the 
development of land as an integral unit for single or 
mixed uses in accordance with special conditions or a 
Concept Plan that may include uses, regulations and 
other requirements that vary from the provisions of 
other zoning districts. PD districts are generally 
intended to encourage flexible and creative planning, 
to ensure the compatibility of land uses, to allow 
for the adjustment of changing demands to meet the 
current needs of the community, and to result in a 
higher quality development for the community than 
would result from the use of standard zoning 
districts. 

... 
 
(C) Nature of the District. Each PD district is based on 

the standard zoning district(s) that most closely 
resembles the development anticipated. Development in 
a PD district must be generally consistent with the 
Concept or Detail Plan (where required) submitted in 
the application or approved for a Planned Development. 

... 
 
Section 2.08 Authorized Uses; Consistency with Concept or 

Detail Plan. 
 
... 



7 
 

 
(C) Location and Arrangement of Buildings. The location 

and arrangement of all buildings in the PD district 
must be generally consistent with the Detail or 
Concept Plan, if any, approved with the district. 

 
(D) Consistency Required. All development applications 

within a PD district must be generally consistent with 
the Detail or Concept Plan that is part of the PD. 
Failure of a subsequent development application to 
generally conform to the approved Detail or Concept 
Plan will result in denial of the application, unless 
the PD district regulations are amended through 
incorporation of a revised Concept or Detail Plan with 
which the development application is consistent. 

... 
 
Section 2.11 Concept Plan 

 
(A) Requirement for Concept Plan. The Planning Director 

shall determine whether a Concept Plan is required as 
part of an application for a PD or SUP. If a Concept 
Plan is determined to be required, such Plan must be 
included with the PD or SUP change of zoning 
application and is, if the application is approved, 
incorporated as part of the PD or SUP ordinance. 
 

(B) Purpose of Concept Plan. The purpose of a Concept Plan 
is to provide a general layout of the proposed 
development.  The City’s approval of a Concept Plan 
will allow the applicant to determine whether the City 
is generally in agreement with the land usage and 
development proposed, and will provide the City with 
an overall impression of the development proposed.  A 
Concept Plan shall be construed to be an illustration 
of the development concepts only and not an exact 
representation of the specific development proposed. 
 

(C) Contents of Concept Plan. Requirements for the format 
and contents of a Concept Plan must be in accordance 
with requirements in the Development Application 
Packet, as may be amended from time to time.  
 

(D) Planning Director Review. The planning director is 
authorized to require the applicant to make additions 
and corrections to Concept Plans before moving the 
application forward to the public hearing stage.  



8 
 

... 
 
Section 2.12 Amending a Planned Development (PD) 
 

(A) Existing PD containing requirement for Detail Plan. 
When amending an existing PD that contains a 
requirement for a Detail Plan, a Concept Plan may be 
used in place of the Detail Plan.  

 
Section 2.13 Approval of a Planned Development District. 
 
... 
 
Section 2.14 Adopting Ordinance. 
 
Items Specific to the Ordinance. The ordinance establishing 
a PD district shall incorporate an approved Concept Plan as 
part of the district regulations and shall set forth the 
following:  
... 
 
Section 2.15 Subsequent Development Applications. 
 

(A) Minor Deviations from Approved Planned Development 
(PD). In determining whether development applications 
are consistent with the approved PD, minor deviations 
from the PD may be approved by the Planning Director. 
Unless otherwise specified in the PD adopting 
ordinance, the Planning Director has the discretion 
to determine whether deviations from the PD are minor 
deviations, upon a determination that the deviations 
meet the intent of the PD conditions, and meet or 
exceed the requirements of the PD. 
 

(B) Major Deviations from Approved Planned Development 
(PD). All other deviations from the approved PD that 
the Planning Director has not determined to be minor, 
will be considered major and must be submitted for 
approval as a change of zoning application to amend the 
PD district to the Plan Commission and City Council. 

... 
 
Section 2.17 Purpose, Applicability, and Effect. 
 
... 
 

(B) Applicability. A Specific Use Provision is required to 



9 
 

use or develop property within the City limits for any 
use designated as a specific use in the Land Use Matrix 
in Article 5 of this Chapter 2 for the zoning district 
in which the property is located. The Specific Use 
Provision application may be accompanied by a Concept 
Plan prepared in accordance with requirements set forth 
in the Development Application Packet, as may be 
amended from time to time. 

 
... 
 
Section 2.19 Application Requirements. 

 
... 

 
(B) Concept Plan. A Concept Plan may be required as part 

of an SUP application. The requirements for the format 
and content of a Concept Plan must be in compliance 
with the requirements in the Development Application 
Packet, as may be amended from time to time. The Concept 
Plan may be incorporated into the regulations of the 
SUP ordinance and must be construed in conjunction with 
the authorized uses and development standards, if any, 
set forth in the SUP ordinance. 

 
... 
 
Section 2.52 Special Standards for Certain Uses. 

 
(A) Specific Requirements. The City has established the 

following standards for certain land uses that apply 
to the uses regardless of the zoning district in which 
they are located, unless otherwise stated within other 
sections of this GDC. The definitions for each land use 
listed below are contained within Chapter 6 of this 
GDC.  

 
... 
 

(34) Recreational Vehicle (RV) Park. A Recreational 
Vehicle Park must comply with the following 
provisions of this Subsection (36):  
 
(a) Planned Development (PD) District Required. An 

RV Park is allowed only within a PD district. 
The approval of a Concept Plan is required. 

...” 



10 
 

Section 3 
 
That Chapter 3, “Subdivision Regulations” of the Garland 
Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas, is hereby 
amended in part to read as follows: 
 
“ 
... 
 
Section 3.05 Relationship Between Platting & Zoning. 
 

(A) Zoning. Inside the corporate limits of the City, the 
following shall apply:  

... 
 

(3) Planned Development (PD) District and Specific Use 
Provision (SUP) Zoning. In a Planned Development 
(PD) district (refer to Chapter 2, Article 2, 
Division 2) or for Specific Use Provision (SUP) 
zoning (refer to Chapter 2, Article 2, Division 
3), a plat application must conform with all 
PD/SUP and other applicable zoning regulations, 
and with the approved PD/SUP zoning exhibit, 
Concept Plan, Detail Plan, Site Plan, or other 
layout plan approved as part of the PD/SUP 
ordinance. 

... 
 
Section 3.46 Timing & Relief. 

 
(A) Timing of Dedication & Construction. 

 
(1) Initial Provision for Dedication or Construction. 

The developer shall submit for approval Schematic 
Engineering Drawings that demonstrate a proposed 
development will be adequately served by public 
facilities and services at the time for approval 
of a site permit application for a development, 
including: a petition for an annexation agreement 
or an annexation development agreement (if 
applicable). 

 
As a condition of approval of the development application, 
the City may require the dedication of rights-of-way or 
easements for, and construction of, capital improvements to 
serve the proposed development. 
 



11 
 

... 
 
Section 3.62 Schematic Drainage Plan Review. 
 
A Schematic Stormwater Plan (SSP) shall be submitted to the 
City for review prior to submission of a site permit that 
involves construction pursuant to Subsection 3.61(B) above 
(whichever occurs first). Schematic Drainage Plan 
requirements are in the Technical Standards, and basic 
information regarding the site shall be provided including, 
but not limited to, the following:  
 
...” 
 

Section 4 
 
That Chapter 4, “Site Development” of the Garland Development 
Code of the City of Garland, Texas, as amended, shall be and 
remain in full force and effect save and except as amended by 
this Ordinance. 
 
“ 
... 
 
Section 4.55 Definitions for Tree Preservation. 
 
The following terms and phrases, as used in this Article 4, 
have the following meanings (other related definitions are 
contained within Article 3 of this Chapter 4, and also within 
Chapter 6, of this GDC):  
 
... 
 

(O) "Tree Removal Authorization" means an approval issued 
by the Planning Director based on a Tree Management 
Plan that has been approved by the Planning Director 
during Site Plan, PD Concept or Detail Plan, Site 
Permit, or Building Inspection review and approval (as 
applicable, and whichever occurs first). 

 
...” 
 

Section 5 
 
That Chapter 5, “Relief Procedures & Enforcement” of the 
Garland Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas, as 



12 
 

amended, shall be and remain in full force and effect save 
and except as amended by this Ordinance. 
 
“ 
... 
 
Section 5.21 Dormant Projects. 
 

(A) Definitions. For purposes of this section only:  
 
(1) Initial Permit means any of the following types 

of applications or approvals granted under the 
Garland Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance or 
subdivision regulations (including Chapter 31 of 
the City Code), as amended, or any predecessor 
zoning, subdivision or development-related 
ordinance that was in effect prior to the 
effective date of this GDC: any Site Plan, Concept 
Plan, Detail Plan, Specific Use Permit/Provision, 
any type of plat, or any other application that 
was approved subject to a schematic drawing 
illustrating the location, arrangement, 
orientation, or design of land uses, lots, or 
improvements on a site intended for development. 

 
...” 
 

Section 6 
 
That Chapter 7, “Downtown (DT) District” of the Garland 
Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas, as amended, 
shall be and remain in full force and effect save and except 
as amended by this Ordinance. 
 
“ 
... 
 
Section 7.28 Downtown Development Plan. 
 

(A) Prior to obtaining a Site or Building Permit, an 
approved Downtown Development Plan must be obtained 
from the Planning Director (or from the City Council, 
if the Director’s decision is appealed) demonstrating 
that the proposal meets the goals, intent, and general 
standards contained in these district regulations. 

 
(B) A Downtown Development Plan application shall include 



13 
 

the following information and documents that 
demonstrate compliance with the Downtown district:  

... 
(10 Minor or Major Waivers being requested or 

previously approved 
... 
 
Section 7.30 Waivers of Design Standards. 
 

(A) Types of Waivers. For the purposes of this district, 
there shall be two types of Waivers of design 
standards – Minor and Major. A Waiver may be made in 
conjunction with an application for a Downtown 
Development Plan, or prior to and independent of the 
application. Any Waiver must be specifically 
requested by the Applicant. No Waivers to standards 
will be considered approved if not specifically 
identified in the request for approval of a 
Development Plan. 

 
... 
 

(C) Major Waivers are material and substantial changes to 
the design standards in the Downtown district, or 
changes which may initially appear to be in conflict 
with the goals and intent of this district. Major 
Waivers may only be approved by the City Council, 
following a recommendation by the Planning Director 
and the Plan Commission. In order to approve a Major 
Waiver, the City Council shall find that the Waiver:  

 
...” 
 

Section 7 
 
That Chapters 1,2,3,4,5, and 7 of the Garland Development 
Code shall be and remain in full force and effect save and 
except as amended by this Ordinance. 
 
 
 

Section 8 
 
That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are severable 
and are governed by Sec. 1.07 of the Garland Development Code 
of the City of Garland, Texas. 
 



14 
 

 
 

Section 9 
 
That this Ordinance shall be and become effective immediately 
upon and after its passage and approval. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the ____ day of April 2024. 
 
       

CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS 
 
      __________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Deputy City Secretary 


	Agenda
	AI_9295_Plan Commission Minutes for March 11, 2024
	       ATT_March 11, 2024 Plan Commission Minutes
	MINUTES

	AI_9296_P 24-08 Kingsley Road Properties Industrial District - Replat
	       ATT_P 24-08 Kingsley Road Properties Industrial District Replat Report and Attachments
	AI_9299_Z 23-28 David Gibbons (District 2)
	       ATT_Z 23-28 David Gibbons Report and Attachments (District 2)
	PC Exhibits.pdf
	1922castleSITE
	2024.03.12 - Garland HUD - Landscape Plan
	Pages from Castle Drive_PD Amendment_012424


	       ATT_Z 23-28 David Gibbons Responses
	AI_9303_Z 24-04 Golden Bee Trove, LLC (District 4)
	       ATT_Z 24-04 Golden Bee Trove LLC Report and Attachments (District 4)
	       ATT_Z 24-04 Golden Bee Trove LLC Responses 
	AI_9300_Z 24-11 Kimley Horn (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 24-11 Kimley Horn Report and Attachments (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 24-11 Kimley Horn Responses 
	AI_9297_SL 24-01 Silvano Ramos (District 2)
	       ATT_SL 24-01 Silvano Ramos Report and Attachments
	AI_9304_GDC Amendments
	       ATT_GDC Amendments - Detail Plans Concept Plans 
	       ATT_GDC Ordinance 

